
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Kim Houghton 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864267   Ebost: houghk@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2018 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam,  
 
Bydd cyfarfod Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg Gydol Oes yn cael ei gynnal yn Sirhowy Room - Tŷ Penallta, 
Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar Dydd Mawrth, 6ed Tachwedd, 2018 am 5.30 pm i ystyried materion a 
gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  Gall cynghorwyr a'r cyhoedd sy'n dymuno siarad am unrhyw eitem 
wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i'r Cadeirydd. Mae croeso i chi hefyd ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod.  
Mae'r ddau gais hyn yn gofyn am gyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith, a bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei 
ddarparu os gofynnir amdano. 
 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr ymddwyn 
gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y gofynnir i chi adael 
y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Addysg am Oes a gynhaliwyd ar 25ain Medi 2018. 

1 - 6 
 

4  Ystyried unrhyw fater a gyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor hwn yn unol â'r drefn galw i mewn. 
 

 
5  I dderbyn adroddiad llafar gan yr Aelod(au) Cabinet. 

 
 

6  Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg Gydol Oes. 
 

7 - 22 
 

7  I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau* Cabinet canlynol:-   

1. Gweithredu Cronfa Gymdeithasol Ewropeaidd Meithrin Arfogi Ffynu (MAFf) – 17 
Hydref 2018  

 
 *Os oes aelod o'r Pwyllgor Craffu yn dymuno i unrhyw un o'r Eitemau Gwybodaeth uchod i gael eu 
dwyn ymlaen ar gyfer adolygiad yn y cyfarfod, cysylltwch â Kim Houghton, 01443 864267, erbyn 
10.00am ar ddydd Llun, 5 Tachwedd 2018. 
 
I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau Craffu canlynol:- 
 
8  Ymgynghoriad - Cynnig i Ffedereiddio. 

23 - 106 
 

9  Y Broses Hunanarfarnu a'i Heffaith ar Gynllun Gwella Gwasanaethau'r Gyfadran Addysg. 
107 - 122 

 
10  Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol 

123 - 128 
 

 
 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr C. Andrews (Is Gadeirydd), P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, S. Cook, W. David, A. Farina-Childs, 
D.T. Hardacre, D. Havard (Cadeirydd), M.P. James, B. Miles, Mrs G.D. Oliver, Mrs T. Parry, J.E. Roberts, 
R. Saralis, J. Simmonds a R. Whiting 
 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig: 
 
Cynrychiolwyr Archesgobaeth ROC Caerdydd dros Addysg (gyda hawliau pleidleisio ar faterion 
addysgol) 
Mr M. Western 
 
Cynrychiolwyr Rhiant Lywodraethwyr (gyda hawliau pleidleisio ar faterion addysgol) Mr M Barry a Mr 
R Morgan 



 
Cynrychiolwyr Cyrff Allanol (heb hawliau pleidleisio) 
Mrs J. Havard (NEU) a Mrs P. Ireland (NEU) 
 
Asiantaeth Llywodraethwyr Caerffili (heb hawliau pleidleisio) 
Mr D Davies 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol 
 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 
 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG GYDOL OES 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD YN NHŶ PENALLTA, YSTRAD MYNACH, 
DDYDD MAWRTH, 25 MEDI 2018, AM 5.30PM. 

 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd D. Havard – Cadeirydd 

 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, S. Cook, W. David, A. Farina-Childs, D.T. Hardacre, M.P. James, B. 
Miles, Mrs G.D. Oliver, J.E. Roberts, R. Saralis, a J. Simmonds  

 
 

Ynghyd â: 
 

R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), K. Cole 
(Prif Swyddog Addysg), S. Richards (Pennaeth Cynllunio a Strategaeth Addysg), Jane 
Southcombe (Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Ariannol), C. Forbes-Thompson (Pennaeth Dros Dro 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd), E. Sullivan (Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor), a K. 
Houghton (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 

 
Hefyd yn bresennol: 

 
 Aelodau cyfetholedig: Mr R. Morgan (Rhiant-lywodraethwr) a Mrs P.J. Ireland (Undeb Addysg 

Cenedlaethol)  
 
 E. Pryce (Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg), J. Wood (Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg), a N. Thain 

(Pennaeth, Ysgol Gymunedol Gynradd a Meithrin Graig-y-rhaca) 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Daeth ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb i law gan y Cynghorwyr P. Marsden (Aelod Cabinet 
dros Addysg a Chyflawniad), C. Andrews (Is-gadeirydd), Mrs T. Parry, a R. Whiting. Hefyd Mr 
M. Barry (Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-lywodraethwyr), Mr D. Davies (Cymdeithas Llywodraethwyr 
Caerffili), Mrs J. Havard (Undeb Addysg Cenedlaethol), a Mr M. Western (Cynrychiolydd 
Comisiwn Archdiocesaidd Eglwys Uniongred Rwsia Caerdydd dros Addysg). 
 

2. DATGANIAD O DDIDDORDEB 
 

Ni chafwyd datganiadau o ddiddordeb ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod, nac yn ystod y cyfarfod. 
 

 
3. COFNODION – 3 GORFFENNAF 2018 
 

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg am Oes 
a gynhaliwyd ddydd Mawrth 3 Gorffennaf 2018 (cofnodion rhifau 1–8) yn gofnod cywir, 
a'u llofnodi gan y Cadeirydd. 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



 

 
 
 
4. YSTYRIED UNRHYW FATER A GYFEIRIWYD AT Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU YN UNOL Â'R 

WEITHDREFN GALW I MEWN 
 

Ni chyfeiriwyd unrhyw faterion at y Pwyllgor Craffu yn unol â'r weithdrefn galw i mewn. 
 
5. ADRODDIAD YR AELOD CABINET 
 

Nodwyd bod ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb wedi dod i law gan y Cynghorydd P. Marsden, 
Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a Chyflawniad; oherwydd hyn, nodwyd yr adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol heb sylw. Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau roi unrhyw adborth yn 
uniongyrchol i'r Cynghorydd Marsden drwy e-bost. 
 
Darllenodd y Cadeirydd ddatganiad byr ar ei rhan, a diolchodd i'r Aelod Cabinet am yr 
adroddiad. 

 
6. BLAEN RAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG AM OES 
 

Cyflwynodd Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yr adroddiad, a oedd yn 
amlinellu blaen raglen waith ddrafft y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg am Oes o fis Medi 2018 tan fis 
Ebrill 2018. 
 
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau y bu nifer o newidiadau arfaethedig i'r rhaglen, ers cyhoeddi'r 
adroddiad, er mwyn iddynt eu hystyried. Mae swyddogion wedi gofyn i'r Aelodau ystyried 
symud yr adroddiad ar y Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif, a drefnwyd ar gyfer 6 Tachwedd 
2018, i ddyddiad i'w gadarnhau er mwyn caniatáu cynnwys gwybodaeth ychwanegol nad yw 
ar gael yn ystod yr amserlen honno. Bydd yr adroddiad, sef Canolfan Adnoddau Arbennig 
Ysgol Gynradd Pontllan-fraith – sydd hefyd wedi'i drefnu ar gyfer cyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 6 
Tachwedd – bellach yn cynnwys Ysgol Idris Davies hefyd. Gofynnwyd hefyd i'r Aelodau 
ystyried derbyn yr adroddiad Cyllid Hyblygrwydd ar gyfer 8 Ionawr 2019 fel eitem wybodaeth, 
ac awgrymwyd adroddiad ychwanegol ar gyfer y cyfarfod ar 19 Chwefror 2019 ar Safonau 
Llyfrgelloedd. 
 
Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau ystyried y flaenraglen waith, a'r newidiadau arfaethedig, a gwneud 
unrhyw newidiadau neu gynnig unrhyw eitemau ychwanegol i'w cynnwys ar gyfer cyfarfodydd 
yn y dyfodol. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i Bennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd am gyflwyno'r 
flaenraglen waith, a chroesawyd sylwadau'r Aelodau. 
 
Holodd yr Aelodau am gynnydd yr adroddiad y gofynnwyd amdano ar gynlluniau i wella 
cyrhaeddiad yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 4. Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg wrth yr Aelodau 
fod cyfarfodydd yn cael eu cynnal â phob un o'r ysgolion uwchradd yn y fwrdeistref sirol. Bydd 
y cyfarfodydd hyn yn cael eu cwblhau cyn hanner tymor mis Hydref 2018 a bydd barn yn cael 
ei ffurfio a'i hadrodd i gyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 8 Ionawr 2019 ar y cynharaf a chysylltu hyn 
wedyn ag adroddiadau ar berfformiad Cyfnodau Allweddol 4 a 5. Mynegodd yr Aelodau 
bryderon am yr amserlenni adrodd, o ystyried bod angen cynllun yn dilyn canlyniadau 
arholiadau'r flwyddyn hon ac asesiadau Estyn ar gyfer ysgolion uwchradd yr ardal. Cytunodd y 
Prif Swyddog Addysg fod angen cyflymu gwelliant yn y maes hwn; gan fod hyn yn gofyn am 
ddull strategol, roedd yn hanfodol bod pob ysgol uwchradd yn cael ei chynnwys yn y gwaith 
paratoadol fel bod modd ffurfio barn gytbwys a gwybodus ar draws pob un o'r ysgolion. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am gael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am yr adroddiadau ar ganlyniadau'r 
Adolygiad o Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol. Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg fod hwn yn 
adolygiad parhaus dros nifer o flynyddoedd, a byddai tri adroddiad yn cael eu hychwanegu at 
y Flaen Raglen Waith maes o law. Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau fod rhagor o waith i'w 

Page 2



 

wneud ar yr adolygiad, gyda thri ymweliad arall ag ysgolion a goblygiadau personél i'w 
hystyried yn llawn. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am gael trosolwg byr o statws Cynigion Band B y Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 
21ain Ganrif cyn cyflwyno'r adroddiad yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor ar 6 Tachwedd 2018. 
Dywedodd Pennaeth Cynllunio a Strategaeth Addysg wrth y Pwyllgor eu bod nhw'n disgwyl 
sicrhau cytundeb ar gyfer y ffrydiau cyllido, sydd i'w cadarnhau cyn mis Tachwedd 2018, a'u 
bod nhw hefyd yn disgwyl y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am gyflawni adolygiad o'r gwasanaethau 
a ddarperir yn y fwrdeistref sirol. Roedd hi'n disgwyl i'r adroddiad ddod gerbron y Pwyllgor 
Craffu, cyn y Cabinet, yn ystod diwedd tymor y gwanwyn 2019.  
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad a newidiadau 
arfaethedig y Swyddog yn cael eu cymeradwyo. Cytunwyd ar hyn drwy godi dwylo. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cymeradwyo'r flaen raglen waith, a atodir wrth yr adroddiad, 
yn amodol ar y newidiadau uchod.  

 
 

ADRODDIADAU'R SWYDDOGION  
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiadau canlynol. 
 
7. CYRHAEDDIAD DISGYBLION YN Y CYFNOD SYLFAEN, CYFNOD ALLWEDDOL 2 A 

CHYFNOD ALLWEDDOL 3 – 2017 
 

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd Mrs. N. Thain, Pennaeth Ysgol Gymunedol Gynradd a Meithrin 
Graig-y-rhaca, i'r cyfarfod. 
 
Rhoddodd Mrs Thain gyflwyniad yn manylu ar berfformiad yr ysgol yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen, a 
rhoddodd enghreifftiau o'r arferion gorau a ddefnyddir yn yr ysgol. Yn benodol, amlinellodd y 
Pennaeth yr heriau sy'n wynebu'r ysgol mewn ardal o amddifadedd cymdeithasol ac 
economaidd difrifol, a thynnodd sylw at ddefnydd yr ysgol o amrywiaeth o ddulliau i gyflawni 
amcanion perfformiad. Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys defnyddio amgylcheddau dysgu dan 
do/awyr agored, cyfoethogi amgylcheddau dysgu ar gyfer llythrennedd a rhifedd, gwahanol 
dechnegau ar gyfer datblygu dysgwyr hyderus, chwilfrydig ac annibynnol, ac ymgysylltu â 
rhieni a'r gymuned. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau nifer o gwestiynau yn ymwneud â chynnwys rhieni, cysylltu â'r rhaglen 
Dechrau'n Deg yn yr ardal a lefelau presenoldeb. Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth fod llawer o waith 
yr ysgol wedi canolbwyntio ar feithrin perthynas gadarnhaol a chynhwysol gyda rhieni a'r 
gymuned. Roedd hyn wedi cynnwys sesiwn cwrdd a chyfarch gyda'r Pennaeth, cynnwys 
rhieni mewn diwrnodau dysgu thematig, clwb gwaith cartref i ddisgyblion a rhieni, ac archwilio 
llu o ddulliau darparu cymorth ar gyfer rhieni. Mae canolbwyntio ar estyn allan i'r gymuned 
hefyd wedi cynnwys ymgysylltu â'r rhaglen Dechrau'n Deg, gyda staff yr ysgol a staff y 
rhaglen yn rhannu arferion da a chynnal digwyddiadau Dechrau'n Deg yn yr ysgol. Dywedodd 
y Pennaeth wrth yr Aelodau fod materion lefelau presenoldeb ar y gweill a bod dull aml-
asiantaeth yn cael ei ddefnyddio i gynorthwyo rhieni, yn enwedig ym maes sefydlu arferion a 
strwythur yn y cartref. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i Bennaeth Ysgol Gymunedol Gynradd a Meithrin Graig-y-rhaca, a'i 
llongyfarch hi ar ran y Pwyllgor am y gwaith da a oedd yn cael ei wneud yn yr ysgol. 
 
Yna, cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg yr adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi gwybod i'r Aelodau am 
gyrhaeddiad disgyblion mewn asesiadau athrawon yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen, Cyfnod Allweddol 2 a 
Chyfnod Allweddol 3 yn 2017. Dywedodd hi wrth yr Aelodau fod y trefniadau adrodd wedi 
newid oherwydd ni fyddai asesiadau athrawon mewn awdurdodau lleol ar gael yn gyhoeddus 
mwyach ar ffurf tablau cynghrair; mae hyn er mwyn rhoi mwy o ryddid i'r ysgolion addasu i 
gwricwlwm newydd Cymru, ac nid yw'r dull asesu wedi'i benderfynu hyd yn hyn. Bydd y data'n 

Page 3



 

dal i fod ar gael yn fewnol i awdurdodau lleol eu defnyddio, ond, ni fydd meincnodau 1, 2, 3 a 
4 yn cael eu pennu oherwydd ni fydd unrhyw ddata cymaradwy ag awdurdodau lleol eraill. 
Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau y cynhelir gweithdy, sy'n rhoi'r manylion ar y newidiadau hyn, ddydd Iau 
27 Medi 2018 a gofynnwyd iddyn nhw wneud pob ymdrech i fod yn bresennol. 
 
Cododd yr Aelodau bryderon am y ffaith ei bod yn ymddangos bod lleihad yn swmp y data 
cymharol sydd ar gael i lywio gwaith craffu'r Pwyllgor ar berfformiad ysgolion a bod modd 
cymharu â chyfartaleddau cenedlaethol yn unig bellach yn hytrach na chymharu ag 
awdurdodau lleol tebyg. Cytunodd cynrychiolwyr y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg â'r pryderon 
a godwyd, ond roedd y newidiadau'n golygu symud i ffwrdd oddi wrth ddata meintiol caled a 
symud tuag at ddata ansoddol meddalach yn canolbwyntio ar arweinyddiaeth, ansawdd yr 
addysgu, llesiant ac anghenion dysgu amrywiol. Tynnodd cynrychiolwyr y Gwasanaeth 
Cyflawni Addysg sylw at y ffaith y byddai categoreiddio ysgolion yn arwydd o'u llwybr gwella. 
 
Holodd yr Aelodau am y bwlch ym mherfformiad merched a bechgyn, a gofyn am gael rhagor 
o wybodaeth am ddulliau delio â'r mater hwn. Dywedodd cynrychiolwyr y Gwasanaeth 
Cyflawni Addysg fod gwaith yn cael ei wneud gydag ysgolion i ddarparu strategaethau ac offer 
ar eu cyfer nhw i amlygu problemau a dulliau casglu data gwell ar y bwlch, a'r rhesymau 
drosto. Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau fod rhai ysgolion wedi llwyddo i fynd i'r afael â'r bwlch 
rhwng y rhywiau, a'u bod nhw'n rhannu arferion da ar draws y rhwydwaith ysgolion. 
Dywedwyd hefyd wrth yr Aelodau fod y safonau proffesiynol newydd ar gyfer addysgu ac 
arweinyddiaeth yn canolbwyntio ar brofiadau dysgu dilys sydd, yn eu tro, yn anelu at fynd i'r 
afael â'r bwlch rhwng y rhywiau a gwella perfformiad bechgyn ar lefel cynradd ac uwchradd. 
Tynnodd y Swyddogion sylw at y ffaith nad oedd y fwrdeistref sirol yn sefyll allan fel ardal â 
bwlch arbennig o fawr rhwng y rhywiau. 
 
Gofynnodd un o'r Aelodau am eglurhad ar y clystyrau STEM a gwaith monitro eu gwaith i 
sicrhau eu bod yn effeithiol. Eglurodd cynrychiolwyr y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg fod aelod 
craidd o'r Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg ym mhob clwstwr sy'n ymgysylltu â nhw ac yn 
monitro grantiau ac addasrwydd eu gweithgarwch. Hefyd, mae pob clwstwr yn gysylltiedig ag 
ysgol arloes lle gall cynrychiolydd y clwstwr gyflwyno arferion da. 
 
Gofynnodd yr Aelodau sut byddai'r newidiadau o ran adrodd ar berfformiad yn effeithio ar y 
Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg a'r gwasanaethau y mae'n eu darparu ar gyfer y rhanbarth. 
Dywedodd cynrychiolydd y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg wrth yr Aelodau fod gan y 
Gwasanaeth rôl i'w chwarae o hyd a byddai'r Gwasanaeth yn paratoi Blaengynllun Busnes tair 
blynedd, a Chynllun Busnes manwl am y flwyddyn, maes o law. Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau y 
byddai'r Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg hefyd yn cyflwyno'r dull adolygu gan gymheiriaid i'r 
ysgolion, gyda chydweithio agosach fyth rhwng yr ysgol a'r cynghorwyr herio. Yn ogystal â 
hyn, bydd y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg yn gweithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru a'r Awdurdod 
Lleol i ragfynegi newidiadau posibl yn y Gwasanaeth Addysg, ac i baratoi ar eu cyfer. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaeth faith wedyn ynghylch data perfformiad a phennu targedau cywir, ac 
arweiniodd hyn at drafodaeth ynghylch cwtogi ar gyllidebau – gan gynnwys cwtogi ar 
wasanaethau cynnal ymddygiad – a holodd yr Aelodau ynghylch yr effaith ar reoli ymddygiad 
heriol yn yr ysgol. Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg wrth yr Aelodau fod dulliau amgen a 
dulliau cyflawni newydd yn cael eu datblygu – gan gynnwys hyfforddiant gwell i gynorthwywyr 
addysgu a datblygu arferion yn yr ysgolion i ddelio ag ymddygiad heriol. 
 
O ran addysg heblaw yn yr ysgol, rhoddodd wybod i'r Pwyllgor y bydd adroddiad yn cael ei 
ddwyn ymlaen er mwyn cyflwyno pob agwedd ar addysg heblaw yn yr ysgol – gan gynnwys 
darpariaethau ar gyfer ymddygiad heriol lle nad oes modd diwallu anghenion dysgu yn yr 
ysgol. Cododd yr Aelodau gwestiynau ynghylch nifer y plant yn y fwrdeistref sirol a oedd yn 
cael eu haddysgu y tu allan i'r ysgol – gan gynnwys yn y cartref neu sy'n cael eu hanfon i 
leoliadau arbenigol y tu hwnt i ffiniau'r fwrdeistref sirol. Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg 
fod tua 300 ar y gofrestr ar hyn o bryd. Esboniodd hefyd fod plant yn cael eu haddysgu y tu 
allan i'r ysgol am nifer o resymau; nid am eu hymddygiad yn unig, ond hefyd ar sail eu 
hanghenion meddygol – gan gynnwys materion iechyd meddwl – a'i bod hi'n werth cadw 

Page 4



 

mewn cof mai'r rhain yw rhai o'r bobl ifanc fwyaf bregus yn y fwrdeistref sirol, â materion eang 
a chymhleth. Nodwyd bod darpariaethau hefyd wedi'u rhoi ar waith ar gyfer cefnogi plant lle 
mae'r rhieni'n dewis eu haddysgu nhw gartref. Yn ychwanegol at hyn, atgoffodd y Swyddog yr 
Aelodau y byddai lefel a hyd y cymorth a ddarperir yn cael ei addasu i weddu'n berffaith i 
anghenion y disgyblion unigol, gyda'r nod delfrydol o ailgyflwyno'r disgyblion hynny i'r ysgolion 
prif ffrwd. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaeth bellach ynghylch y derminoleg a ddefnyddir yn yr adroddiadau o ran y 
Gymraeg; roedd yr Aelodau o'r farn ei bod hi'n anodd gwahaniaethu rhwng p'un a oedd y 
data'n cyfeirio at ddysgu Cymraeg neu iaith a addysgir drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Dywedwyd 
wrth yr Aelodau mai terminoleg genedlaethol oedd hon, ond byddai modd ei newid er mwyn 
bod yn fwy eglur. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd nodi'r adroddiad. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn 
unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.  
 

  PENDERFYNWYD nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad. 
 
 
8. MONITRO'R GYLLIDEB 2018/19 
 

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid yr adroddiad a oedd yn amlinellu rhagamcan o 
sefyllfa alldro 2018-19 ar gyfer y Gyfadran Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes yn seiliedig ar y 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf sydd ar gael. Tynnodd sylw'r Aelodau at y ffaith bod gorwariant 
rhagamcanol o £438,000 ar hyn o bryd yn y Gyfadran Addysg a Dysgu Gydol Oes a 
thanwariant o £1.475 miliwn yn y Gyfadran Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol yn gyffredinol. 
Dywedodd wrth yr Aelodau am bwyntiau perthnasol i'w nodi, fel y manylir yn adroddiad y 
Swyddog, gan ofyn i'r Aelodau roi sylw arbennig i adeg paratoi'r adroddiad, sef chwarter 
cyntaf y flwyddyn ariannol ac, felly, byddai rhywfaint o ansicrwydd yn y ffigurau. 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad, a chroesawyd sylwadau a chwestiynau 
gan yr Aelodau. 
 
Trafododd yr Aelodau gostau darparu cymorth ychwanegol ar gyfer plant nad ydynt yn gallu 
cael eu haddysgu mewn ysgolion prif ffrwd – gan gynnwys addysg yn y cartref a lleoliadau y 
tu allan i'r ardal. Mynegwyd pryderon ynghylch lefel y cyllid yr oedd ei angen, a gofynnodd yr 
Aelodau a fyddai modd darparu'r gwasanaethau hyn yn fewnol. Cadarnhaodd y Prif Swyddog 
Addysg fod costau yn y maes hwn wedi cynyddu, ond rhoddodd sicrwydd i'r Aelodau fod yr 
achosion hynny, lle y defnyddir darpariaeth amgen, yn rhai eithafol a chymhleth ac er budd 
pennaf yr unigolyn dan sylw. Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau fod gwaith yn cael ei wneud i 
ddatblygu darpariaeth fewnol drwy gynnig cyfleoedd datblygu proffesiynol i athrawon gael 
hyfforddi fel arbenigwyr ym maes ymddygiad heriol. Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau am 
gynlluniau i ddatblygu canolfan ragoriaeth ar gyfer addysgu plant ag ymddygiad heriol, a'r 
weledigaeth oedd ei chynnal ochr yn ochr â rhaglen allgymorth i alluogi ysgolion i rannu 
arferion gorau. Codwyd cwestiwn pellach gan un o'r Aelodau ynghylch y costau, ar hyn o bryd, 
sy'n gysylltiedig ag anfon plant y tu hwnt i ffiniau'r fwrdeistref sirol er mwyn diwallu anghenion 
dysgu penodol. Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Addysg wrth yr Aelod fod llawer o resymau pam na 
all plentyn gael ei addysgu mewn ysgol neu yn y fwrdeistref sirol. Er bod llawer o waith yn cael 
ei wneud i wella argaeledd ac ansawdd y ddarpariaeth ‘fewnol’ o ran cymorth addysg 
ychwanegol, bydd bob amser gyfran o blant y bydd rhaid iddyn nhw fynd y tu allan i'r ardal er 
mwyn diwallu eu hanghenion dysgu penodol ac i'r Cyngor dalu'r costau hynny. Rhoddodd 
sicrwydd i'r Aelodau y bydd rhagor o adrodd i'r Pwyllgor ar y pwnc hwn maes o law. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd nodi'r adroddiad. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn 
unfrydol drwy godi dwylo.  
 

  PENDERFYNWYD nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad, a'i atodiad amgaeedig. 
 

Page 5



 

Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 19:30 
 
Wedi'i gymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir ac yn ddarostyngedig i unrhyw ddiwygiadau neu 
gywiriadau a gytunwyd a'u cofnodi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 6 Tachwedd 
2018 fe'u llofnodwyd gan y Cadeirydd. 

 
_______________________ 

CADEIRYDD 

Page 6



 

 

 

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
6TH  NOVEMBER 2018 

 

SUBJECT: EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To report the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas reflect 

the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, the public or 
stakeholders. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The operation of scrutiny is required by the Local Government Act 2000 and subsequent 

Assembly legislation.  The Forward Work Programmes contribute to the following Well-being 
Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 by ensuring there is an 
effective scrutiny function and that council policies are scrutinised against the following goals: 

 
• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of cohesive communities 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
• A globally responsible Wales 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The Education for Life Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all reports that 

were identified at the scrutiny committee meeting on 25th September 2018.  The work 
programme outlines the reports planned for the period November 2018 to April 2019. 

 
4.2 The forward work programme is made up of reports identified by officers and members and 

has been prioritised into three priority areas, priority 1, 2 or 3.  Members are asked to consider 
the work programme alongside the cabinet work programme and suggest any changes before 
it is published on the council website.  Scrutiny committee will review this work programme at 
every meeting going forward alongside any changes to the cabinet work programme or report 
requests.  

Page 7

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



4.3 The Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is attached at 
Appendix 1.  The Cabinet Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This report contributes to the well-being goals as set out in links to strategy above.  It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in that by ensuring the scrutiny function is effective when reviewing services and 
policies and ensure it considers the wellbeing goals. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme prior to 

publication. 
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 The Local Government Act 2000. 
 
 
Author: Kim Houghton, Committee Services Officer 
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate Services 

Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Catherine Forbes-Thompson Interim Head of Democratic Services 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme. 
Appendix 2 Cabinet Work Programme. 
 

Page 8



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – November 2018 – April 2019 

Meeting Date: 6th November 2018 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

Education Other Than At 
School (EOTAS) 

   

Federation of Schools  To Consult Members on a 
proposal to federate the following 
groups of schools: 
Park and Gilfach Primary schools 
Ynysddu and Cwmfelinfach 
Primary schools 
Fleur de Lys and Pengam 
Primary schools 
BedwasJunior and Rhydri 
Primary schools 

Advantage of federation 
Challenges of Federation 
Impact on School Governance 
Heads viewpoint (witness) 
Formal consultation process 

Head Teachers from 
affected School. 

Self-Evaluation    

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 9



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2018 – April 2019 

Meeting Date: Special MTFP – 17th December 2018 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

MTFP     

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 10



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2018 – April 2019 

Meeting Date: 8th January 2019 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

Youth Forum Priorities 
 
 
 

  Youth Forum 
Representatives 

Performance Key Stage 4 
and 5 

   

    

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 11



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2018 – April 2019 

Meeting Date: 19th February 2019 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

EAS Business Plan 
 
 
 

  EAS 

WESP    

Capital Programme     

Library Standards    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 12



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 
 
 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2018 – April 2019 

Meeting Date: 2nd April 2019 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

 
 
 
 

   

    

    

    

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme – May 2018 – April 2019 

Meeting Date: June 2019 – Performance Management 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

Performance Management 
 
 
 

   

Wellbeing Objectives    

Progress Towards Targets 
- EAS  

  EAS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
 
 

Meeting Date: to be confirmed 
Subject  
 

Purpose  
 

Key Issues  
 

Witnesses  
 

21st Century Schools 
Programme 
 
 
    

    

Review of Provision for 
Most Vulnerable Learners 
 
 

To consult with Members on the 
outcome of the recent review and 
the options. 

 Quality provision 

 Value for money 

 Exclusions 

 Outcomes 
 

Head Teacher 
 
Keri Cole – Chief 
Education Officer 

Youth Service Update 
 
Diweddariad y 
Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid 

To consult with Members on the 
outcome of the recent review and 
options within the proposed 
consultation. 

 Current provision 

 Reconfiguration of Youth provision 

 Views of young people 
 

Youth Service User 
 

Additional Support 
Delegation 
 
Dirprwyo Cymorth 
Ychwanegol 

To consult with Members on the 
outcome of the recent review and 
options within the proposed 
consultation. 

 Current provision 

 Options identified by stakeholder group 

Keri Cole – Chief 
Education Officer 
 
Heather Duncan, 
Headteacher, Lewis Girls 

SRB Funding To consult with members of the 
proposed changes and staffing 
implications 

• Ensuring provision is appropriate staffed 
• Funding and staffing implications 

 

P
age 15



APPENDIX 1 
Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  

 

Safeguarding – Member 
Request 

To provide an update of relevant 
issues. 

   

Attendance and 
Exclusions 

    

Performance Measures 
2019 onwards 

    

Notice of Motion – 
Sanitary Products- Period 
Poverty 

    

Regional Groups – 
Request by Chair 

    

Pontllanfraith Pimary/Idris 
Davies SRB 

    

 

P
age 16



Appendix 2 

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny)     
   

  

31ST OCTOBER 2018 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Annual Improvements Report 
2017/18. 

The Annual Improvement Report (AIR) is a summary of the review work 
carried out by Wales Audit Office (WAO) during 2017/18. Individual reports will 
have been prepared throughout the year on specific matters but the AIR 
provides a collective summary. The AIR also includes the WAO’s judgement 
on whether it believes that the Council is meeting its statutory requirements in 
relation to continuous improvement. 

R. Roberts Councillor  
B. Jones 
 
 
 

Procurement of Digital 
Transformation Platform 

 L. Lucas Councillor 
C. Gordon 

Highways Maintenance Plan. The new Approved Code of Practice now considers and allows a risk based 
approach to the strategy adopted for highway maintenance. The authorities 
Highway Maintenance Plan has been reviewed and amended to take into 
account this new approach. 

M. Lloyd Councillor  
S. Morgan 
 
 

 

14TH NOVEMBER 2018  Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Draft Budget Proposals for 
2019/20. 

This report will seek Cabinet endorsement of draft budget proposals for the 
2019/20 financial year based on the Provisional Local Government Financial 
Settlement. This will then allow for a period of consultation prior to 
consideration of final 2019/20 budget proposals by Cabinet and Council in 
February 2019. 

N. Scammell 
 

Councillor  
B. Jones 
 
 
 

Draft Sport and Active 
Recreation Strategy 2019-29. 

To seek Cabinet’s endorsement of the Draft Sport and Leisure Strategy. R. Hartshorn Councillor  
N. George 

 

28TH NOVEMBER 2018  Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Whole Authority Mid-Year Revenue 
Budget Monitoring Report 2018/19. 
 

The report will provide details of projected Whole-Authority revenue 
expenditure for the 2018/19 financial year along with details of any 
significant issues arising. The report will also update Cabinet on progress in 
delivering the approved savings for 2018/19. 

N. Scammell Councillor  
B. Jones 
 
 

P
age 17



Appendix 2 

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny)     
   

  

Future Lighting and Energy Saving 
Proposals. 

To consider options available to achieve street lighting energy savings that 
could contribute to the Medium Term Financial Plan and mitigate energy 
cost increases. 

M. Lloyd Councillor  
S. Morgan 

Local Toilet Strategy. To seek Cabinet approval for the commencement of a Consultation. R. Hartshorn/ 
C. Edwards 

Councillor  
N. George 

Wales Stalled Sites Fund and Self 
Build Fund (Plot shop) 

To advise Cabinet of the Welsh Government measures to assist in 
increasing the number of houses delivered through two funds and a 
supporting site database.  Approval is also sought to progress work, in 
consultation with the Interim Head of Property Services and the Chief 
Housing Officer, to identify sites for the Plot Shop database. 

D. Lucas  Councillors  
S. Morgan/L. Phipps 

Decriminalisation of Parking – 
Resourcing Report. 

To seek Cabinet approval to progress recruitment of Civil Parking 
Enforcement (CPE) officers to ensure that the implementation of CPE meets 
the proposed 8th April 2019 go live date. 

M. Lloyd Councillor S. Morgan 

Decriminalisation of Parking - 
Residents Parking Amendment 
Order 2018. 

The report provides details for Cabinet consideration on the consultation 
feedback received to the proposals to implement residents parking permits 
in accordance with the councils approved policy. 

M. Lloyd  Councillor S. Morgan 

 

12TH DECEMBER 2018  Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Council Tax Base 2019/20. The report provides details of the Council Tax base for 2019/20 for tax 
setting purposes and the collection percentage to be applied.   

N. Scammell 
 

Councillor  
B. Jones 

Homelessness Strategy The report seeks Cabinet approval for implementation of the Strategy. S. Couzens Councillor  
L. Phipps 

Bryn Brithdir, Oakdale Business 
Park - Renewal of CCBC and WG 
Joint Venture Agreement. 

To seek approval for the terms of the Joint Venture agreement with WG in 
relation to allocation of rental income received by the Council for Units 1-4 
Bryn Brithdir, Oakdale Business Park.     
  

A. Bolter  Councillor  
S. Morgan 

Lease Renewal 21 The Lawns, 
Rhymney. 

To seek approval for the Council to enter into a new 10 year lease to 
Groundwork Caerphilly (trading as The Furniture Revival) for Unit 21 Lawn 
Industrial Estate, which comprises 13,103 sq ft, at an annual rental of £1 per 
annum. 

A. Bolter Councillor 
S. Morgan 

Industrial and Office Property 
Portfolio - Proposed changes to 

To seek approval for proposed changes to the lettings procedure for the 
Council’s industrial and office property portfolio. 

A. Bolter Councillor 
S. Morgan 

P
age 18



Appendix 2 

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny)     
   

  

Lettings Procedure.   

SUDS Approval Body (SAB) – 
Service Level Agreements with 
Local Authorities. 

The report seeks Cabinet approval for the Caerphilly’s SAB team to 
establish service level agreements to allow work to be undertaken for other 
local authorities. 

M. Lloyd  Councillor  
S. Morgan 

Proof of Residency at Household 
Waste Recycling Centres. 

To obtain approval for restricting the use of the Council’s Household Waste 
Recycling Centres to residents of Caerphilly county borough only by 
introducing a requirement for proof of residency. 

R. Hartshorn Councillor N. George 

A Foundation for Success: 
Economic Development Plan. 

To seek Cabinet approval for the Economic Development Plan as a sub-
document of the council’s regeneration Strategy “A Foundation for 
Success”. 

D. Lucas Councillor  
S. Morgan  
 

 

16TH JANUARY 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Ystrad Mynach Masterplan. To agree the Draft Ystrad Mynach Masterplan as a basis for a six week 
public consultation exercise to gauge stake holders views on the draft 
proposals for the area.  

R. Kyte Councillor  
S. Morgan  
 

Grants 18/19 Overview – 
Regeneration. 

This Report provides an evaluation of the current Regeneration 
Department’s grant schemes and seeks Cabinet approval to combine the 
grants into a single “Caerphilly Enterprise Fund” with a refocus towards 
offering improved support to start-up businesses, stimulating economic 
growth, filling identified supply chain voids and supporting job creation. 

R. Kyte Councillor  
S. Morgan 
 
 

Business Improvement Plan  S. Harris Councillor B. Jones 

Integrated Grants - Children and 
Communities and Housing  
Support Grant. 

To inform the Cabinet of the Welsh Government’s Flexible Funding project  
and the subsequent decision made by Welsh Government to implement two  
integrated grants from 1st April 2019. 

T. McMahon Councillor S. Morgan 

 

 

P
age 19



Appendix 2 

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny)     
   

  

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF 
BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE – 
16TH JANUARY 2019 

 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 
for 2017/20. 

 
P. Hudson  Councillor  

S. Morgan 

 

30TH JANUARY 2019  Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Corporate Risk Register. To provide an update of the Corporate Risk Register in accordance with the 
Council’s Risk Management Strategy.  The updated Corporate Risk Register 
(CRR) is presented to Audit Committee so there is opportunity for the 
Committee to satisfy itself that appropriate arrangements are in place for the 
council’s risk management processes to be regularly and robustly monitored 
and scrutinised. 

S Harris Councillor  
B. Jones  
 
 

Update on Reserves. To present details of the usable reserves held by the Authority and to outline 
proposals for the use of reserves in some areas. 

N. Scammell Councillor  
B. Jones 

Housing Revenue Account 
Charges 2019/20. 

To present details of proposed increases in rent charges for the 2019/20 
financial year.  

L. Allen Councillor  
L. Phipps 

WHQS – Final stages of the 
Programme. 

 S. Couzens Councillor  
L. Phipps 

 

13TH FEBRUARY 2019  Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Budget Proposals 2019/20 and 
Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy 2019/2024. 

This report will seek Cabinet endorsement of final budget proposals for the 
2019/20 financial year prior to them being presented to Council on the 21st 
February 2019.  

N. Scammell Councillor  
B. Jones 
 

 

27TH FEBRUARY 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Bedwellty School Playing 
Fields. 

 
M. Headington Councillor  

S. Morgan 

P
age 20



Appendix 2 

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny)     
   

  

 

13TH MARCH 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

Future Childcare Solicitor 
Models. 

 
R. Tranter Councillor  

B. Jones 

 

27TH MARCH 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

10TH APRIL 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF 
BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE – 
10TH APRIL 2019                 

 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

24TH APRIL 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

15TH MAY 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

P
age 21



Appendix 2 

Cabinet Forward Work Programme (Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny)     
   

  

 

29TH MAY 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

12TH JUNE 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

    

 

26TH JUNE 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

10TH JULY 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD 
MINERS’ INSTITUTE – 10TH JULY 2018            

 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

24TH JULY 2019 Key Issues Author Cabinet Member 

 
   

 

P
age 22



 

 

 

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
 6TH NOVEMBER 2018 

 

SUBJECT: CONSULTATION – PROPOSAL TO FEDERATE 
 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To consult Scrutiny members on a proposal to federate the 4 groups of schools as shown 

below:  
 
 Park Primary School and Gilfach Fargoed Primary School 
 Fleur de Lys Primary School and Pengam Primary School 
 Bedwas Junior School and Rhydri Primary School 
 Ynysddu Primary School and Cwmfelinfach Primary School 
 
1.2 To give members the opportunity to comment to on the proposals as part of the consultation 

process as outlined in the Welsh Government Federation of Schools Regulations 2014. 
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Governing Bodies of the above schools have already been working on a collaborative 

basis for a number of years and have now requested that the Authority support them in 
proceeding to formal consultation to establish Federation status.  

 
2.2 Cabinet, at its meeting of 11/07/18, agreed to the request to proceed to formal consultation in 

partnership with the Governing Body of each school. 
 
2.3 The consultation documents attached at Appendix A, B, C and D identifies the Schools and 

Governing Bodies who are consulting, in partnership with the Local Authority, on these 
proposals. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The report links directly to the Authority’s Corporate Plan and specifically Well-being Objective 

2018 – 2023, Improving Education Opportunities for All. 
 
3.2 The report contributes to the Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations 

Act (Wales) 2015.  In particular, as follows: 
 

 A healthier Wales – In supporting vulnerable learners to improve their well-being and 
educational achievement by pooling resources, experience and knowledge of both 
schools.  Education is our greatest long term lever for improving the life chances of our 
learners.  

Page 23

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8



 

 A more equal Wales – By ensuring our learners fulfil their potential irrespective of 
backgrounds.  Underpinning all of our work is a belief that someone’s ability to benefit 
from education should not be determined by where they live.  We will continue our drive to 
reduce inequalities and remove barriers to Education. Schools would work together 
formally to improve opportunities for all. 

 A Wales of cohesive communities – By encouraging stakeholders to contribute to 
school planning and direction by a thorough and comprehensive consultation process.  

 A globally responsible Wales – By contributing to the continued improvement of the 
Economic, Social, Environment and Cultural Well-being of the Borough. 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
 Background 
 
4.1 The term “Federation” describes a formal and legal agreement by which a number of schools 

share Governance arrangements. 
 
4.2 The Welsh Government’s Federation policy objective is to promote collaboration between all 

parts of the education system to improve outcomes.  School federation is a more formal way 
of extending collaboration and promoting closer working relationships and is the principal 
initiative for achieving formal partnership working amongst schools to improve performance 
and narrow the attainment gap for deprived pupils. 

 
 Summary of Federation Regulations 
 
4.3 The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools to work together through a 

formal structured process by sharing a governing body that will make decisions in the best 
interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that federation.  

 
4.4 The term federation describes a formal and legal agreement by which a number of schools 

(between two and six) share governance arrangements and have a single governing body.  
 
4.5 The most important reason for considering federation must be the benefits such an 

arrangement would bring for children and young people in the federating schools by 
enhancing educational provision through working together efficiently to raise standards, 
improve services and increase opportunities.  

 
4.6 A federation can provide a foundation for sustainable long term development and 

improvement.  
 
4.7 To be successful, federation needs to be based on a commitment to work as a group of 

schools and a willingness to do things differently for the added benefit of all pupils, their well-
being and achievements.  

 
4.8 One of the advantages of federation is that schools that federate remain in their communities 

and keep their individual identity.  However the existing governing bodies will be dissolved 
and replaced by a new, single governing body which will have oversight of, and equal 
responsibility for, the work of all schools within the federation.  

 
4.9 The membership of a governing body for a federation of schools is almost identical to the 

membership of an ordinary governing body with all stakeholders being represented although 
there is more flexibility in the proportions of representation of each category of governor.  This 
means that a governing body of a federation can choose a constitution and membership 
which suits their particular circumstances as long as they have a minimum of 17 governors 
(two schools) and no more than a maximum of 27 governors (six schools)and adhere to the 
minimum and maximum numbers of governors set out in the regulations.  

 

Page 24



4.10 Schools in a federation will also be able to maintain their own delegated budget, name, 
character, school uniform and ethos, but will be able to explore the advantages of sharing 
resources such as facilities, IT, staff, school buildings, etc. 

 

4.11 A decision to federate by either schools or LAs will not override the need for a LA to intervene 
or act on school improvement or school organisation issues. 

 

4.12 Each school has its own Estyn inspection, though increasingly these are co-ordinated to 
happen at the same time for all schools within the federation to minimise stress and 
disruption. 

 

4.13 The governing body of a federation can use budget, resources and staff across the federation 
to improve the educational outcomes for all pupils.  An audit trail must be kept and separate 
accounts produced for each school in the federation.  

 

4.14 The governing body of a federation cannot require existing staff to work across all schools 
within the federation, but they can negotiate with the school staff unions over whether flexible 
contracts can be introduced.  

 

4.15 New staff can be appointed to work across schools in the federation.  
 

4.16 It is a statutory requirement to seek the views of stakeholders on federation proposals, 
whether the federation has been proposed by the respective school governing bodies, the LA 
or in joint partnership.  

 

4.17 Local authorities must allow the governing bodies 20 school days (excluding inset days) to 
respond to proposals and cannot establish a federation until a period of at least 100 days has 
expired from the date they publish proposals.  

 

4.18 The 4 groups of schools are already working collaboratively and have done so for a number of 
years, as outlined in the attached Consultation Documents. 

 

4.19 A full list of consultees is outlined below:- 
 

 Pupils, staff, governors and parents/guardians of both schools. 

 Teaching and support staff associations. 

 Local ward members for each school. 

 School Councils 

 ESTYN 

 Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 

 Education Achievement Service 
 

4.20 The consultation period for these proposals will be 22nd October 2018 to 10th December 2018. 
 

4.21 A summary of responses will then collated and discussed in detail with each governing Body 
in January/February 2019. 

 

4.22 A Consultation Response report (including the views of the Governing Body) will be presented 
to Scrutiny for consideration in April 2019 prior to final determination by Cabinet. 

 

4.23 If Federation is agreed the new Instrument of Governance for the single Federated Governing 
Bodies will be established in June/July in readiness for the commencement of the Federations 
in September 2019. 

 
 

5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 

5.1 This proposal contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above.  It is 
consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act in that: 

Page 25



• Long Term - The Federation principle will allow schools to formally work together 
effectively to raise standards, improve service and increase opportunities.  This will 
allow for the sharing of expertise, resources and facilities. 

• Prevention - Improving the use of Education resources across the schools will support 
pupils in their long term education and skills outcome in that they are more likely to 
succeed if their Educational experience is positive.  

• Integration – An aligned and coherent curriculum increasing the opportunities to fulfil 
individual pupil needs, extending curriculum entitlement and giving the potential to share 
resources.  This will allow for better continuity of provision from early years to the end of 
Primary schooling. 

• Collaboration – A single development plan, single school policies, reducing duplication 
and also providing the opportunity to share resources but at the same time allowing 
each school to retain its own individual character within a strong overarching partnership 
where each school will be able to learn from each other. 

• Involvement – Through the consultation process the Council will ensure that there is full 
engagement with all relevant stakeholders, e.g. parents, pupils and the local community. 

 
 

6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 The Equality impact assessment is not needed because the report is formalising a partnership 
that is already in existence, therefore the Council’s full EIA process does not need to be 
applied. 

 
 

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 The Federation process does not bring any savings to the Local Authority but may ease 
financial pressures within schools by sharing resources which can be deployed across the 
federation. 

 
 

8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 Due to collaboration arrangements already being in place, in all 4 groups of schools, for a 
number of years there are no personnel implications anticipated directly resulting from this 
proposal.  

 

8.2 Governing Bodies have the responsibility for the management of staffing within schools.  
 
 

9. CONSULTATIONS 
 

9.1 The draft report was distributed as detailed below.  All comments received have been 
reflected in the report.  

 
 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

10.1 That Scrutiny Members consider each Federation consultation document and give their views 
on each proposal to federate the following groups of schools:  

 

Park Primary School and Gilfach Fargoed Primary School 
Fleur de Lys Primary School and Pengam Primary School 
Bedwas Junior School and Rhydri Primary School 
Ynysddu Primary School and Cwmfelinfach Primary School. 

 

10.2 Following the consultation exercise a further report will be presented to Scrutiny and Cabinet 
for final determination on the proposal. 

 

Page 26



11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To work in partnership and support the groups of schools identified in 1.1 in undertaking a 

consultation exercise on federation which if approved will formalise the successful 
collaboration that has been in place for a number of years. 

 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014. 
 School Organisation Code 2013 (Welsh Government). 
 School Standards & Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. 
 
 
Author:  Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning & Strategy 
 E-mail:  richase@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services 
 Mark S. Williams, Corporate Director Communities 
 Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member, Education and Achievement 
 Councillor Derek Havard, Chair of Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 
 Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair of Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 
 Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer 

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language) 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer 
 Ros Roberts, Performance Manager 
 Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager 
 
Background Papers:  
Welsh Government Federation Process of Maintained Schools in Wales May 2014 
Cabinet report – Federation of Schools 11/07/18 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A –  Proposal to Establish a School Federation - Incorporating Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu 

Primary Schools Consultation Document 
Appendix B –  Proposal to Establish a School Federation - Incorporating Gilfach and Park Primary 

Schools Consultation Document 
Appendix C –  Proposal to Establish a School Federation - Incorporating Fleur de Lis and Pengam 

Primary Schools Consultation Document 
Appendix D –  Proposal to Establish a School Federation - Incorporating Bedwas and Rhydri Primary 

Schools Consultation Document 
 

Page 27



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 28



1 
 

Appendix A 

 

Proposal to Establish a School Federation 

Incorporating Cwmfelinfach and  

Ynysddu Primary schools 

 

Consultation Document 

 

     

 

Governing Body, Cwmfelinfach Primary School   

 

Governing Body, Ynysddu Primary School 

 

In partnership with 

 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (Education and Lifelong Learning)       

 

 

September 2018 

 

 

Page 29



2 
 

 

FOREWORD 

The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two and 
six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing body 
that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that 
federation. 
 
The governing bodies of Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu have met individually and jointly 
with the local authority to promote a formal federation involving the 2 schools. 
 
Whilst both schools will continue to have their own individual identity with regards to 
name, culture, ethos and continue to manage their own budgets, this process involves 
establishing a single governing body to govern the two schools. 
 
Both schools’ governing bodies have worked collaboratively over the last couple of 
years and this is continuing to impact positively upon both schools. 
 
The local Authority is responsible for promoting high educational standards and for 
delivering efficient primary and secondary education.  Having effective leaders in its 
schools is considered central to this and is a challenge facing councils across Wales. 
 
As such this consultation document sets out the case for a change to the leadership 
and governance arrangements at Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary schools.  The 
consultation document has been prepared jointly by the governing bodies and the local 
authority. 
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views of 
identified stakeholders.  Appendices to this document refer to general conditions for the 
Federation of Schools and as such should be read in the appropriate context to the 
federation of Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu schools. 
 
This consultation document seeks to provide information to allow you to make an 
informed decision as regards the proposal.  Page 19 includes a response pro-forma 
which can be returned to either Cwmfelinfach or Ynysddu Primary Schools or the local 
authority. 
 
Both governing bodies are proposing this formal federation development.  We look 
forward to receiving your views on the proposal. 
 
 
Carl Woods     Matthew Smith 
Chair of Governors    Chair of Governors 
Cwmfelinfach Primary School  Ynysddu Primary School 
 
 
Keri Cole 
Chief Education Officer 
Caerphilly County Borough Council 
 

 

 

Table of Contents 

Page 30



3 
 

 

Section Description Page(s) 

 
1 
 

 
The Proposal 

 
4 

 
2 
 

 
Background 

 
5-6 

 
3 

 
Key Facts 
 

 
7 

 
5 

 
Admission Arrangements & Composition of the 
Governing Body 
Benefits and Challenges of Federation 
 

 
8 

 
6 

 
Key Facts Benefits and Challenges of Federation 
 
 

 
9 - 10 

 
7 

 
Appendix 2:  Consultation Process & Timeline 
 

 
12-13 

 
8 

 
Appendix 3:  Frequently Asked Questions 
 

 
14-18 

 
9 

 
Response Form 
 

 
19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Proposal 

The governing bodies of Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary schools, together with 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) (the Local Authority- LA) proposes to use 

the powers granted to it by the Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 

2014 to establish The Federation of Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary schools.  

The schools have been working successfully on a collaborative basis for over 5 years. 

Page 31



4 
 

The governing bodies of both Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary schools have 
consulted with the local authority (Caerphilly County Borough Council) and all are in 
support of the proposal.  
 
The aim of the Federation is for the schools to work in partnership to: 
 

 develop the excellent shared practice that guarantees outstanding 
experiences and increased opportunities for pupils and staff 
 

 develop the common goals and reflective approaches to teaching and 
learning that will ensure that both communities benefit from a quality education. 

 
This will ensure significant positive outcomes and improved standards for all. 
 
The term ‘Federation’ describes a formal and legal agreement by which both schools 
work together in formal partnership under a single governing body. The existing 
governing bodies will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing body with 
strategic oversight of both schools.  
 
The proposed name of the Federation is ‘The Federation of Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu 
Primary Schools’.  
 
If the proposal is accepted, the Federation will come into being on 1 September 2019, 
albeit it is proposed to further develop joint working over the next 12 months. 
 

Page 32



5 
 

 

Background 

Both schools have worked on a collaborative basis for over 5 years. 
 
This collaborative approach remains in place and continues to impact positively on both 
schools. 
 
Cwmfelinfach Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school.  

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 192 

Admission Number 27 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – excluding 
Nursery 

207 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year average 
(2014-2017) 

19.4% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 20.2 

Attendance during the year 95% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in the core 
subjects at key stage 2 

94.7% 

Pupils achieving the expected outcome in the 
foundation phase areas of learning 

    92.3% 

Support Category (2017) Green 

 

Ynysddu Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school. 

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 130 

Admission Number 18 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – excluding 
Nursery 

105 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year average 
(2014-2017) 

26.4% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 15.2 

Attendance during the year 94.9% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in the core 
subjects at key stage 2 

81.3% 

Pupils achieving the expected outcome in the 
foundation phase areas of learning 

100% 

Support Category (2017) Green 

 
Both Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary Schools are a categorisation green support 
category.  This means they are highly effective schools which are well run, have strong 
leadership and are clear about their priorities for improvement.  The schools have a 
track record in delivering excellent outcomes for their pupils.       
 
The two schools are located only 0.5 miles apart.  
 
 
 
 

Page 33



6 
 

 
By entering into a federation, the two schools can work together under shared 
leadership to utilise their strengths to improve standards across the federation and 
together address areas in need of improvement.  
 
By federating under one governing body, the climate of trust, openness and willingness 
to work together that already exists can be further enhanced.  
 
 
Collaboration  
 
The two schools serve the villages of Ynysddu, Cwmfelinfach, Morrisville and 
Wattsville.  
 
Currently, the two schools work very closely together under the leadership of a ‘joint’ 
head teacher. Strategic planning is overseen by a shared senior management team, 
comprising of the Head teacher and the Deputy Head teacher from each school. This 
ensures that operational systems are robust and cater for the needs of both individual 
schools. 
 
Staff Inset days are shared which provides both sets of staff with relevant continued 
professional development opportunities and reduces the overall cost to each school. 
Periodic joint staff meetings, monitoring, triad observations and moderation activities 
further support the raising of standards for all pupils across both schools. 
 
Shared transport arrangements for such things as school trips and swimming, further 
reduce overall costs, which can then be passed on to parents. 
 
Over the past years there have been numerous examples of ‘best practice’ that have 
been developed and then shared across the two schools, along with staff expertise that 
has enabled both schools to retain their ‘Green’ categorisation and undergo two very 
successful Estyn Inspections. 
 
 

Page 34



7 
 

 

 

 

Key facts: 

 There will be a single governing body with strategic oversight of both schools 
within the federation. 

 

 Each school retains its name, category, budget, staff and remains in its 
community.  

 

 Each school will have its own Estyn inspection, though increasingly these are co-
ordinated to happen at the same time for all schools within the federation to 
minimise stress and disruption.  

 

 The governing body of a federation can continue to use resources and staff 
across the federation to improve the educational outcomes for all pupils.  

 

 An audit trail must be kept and separate accounts produced for each school in 
the federation.  

 

 The Federated governing body cannot require existing staff to work across both 
schools, but they can negotiate with the school’s staff unions over whether 
flexible contracts can be introduced.  

 

 New staff can be appointed to work across schools in the federation.  

Page 35



8 
 

 

 

Admission Arrangements 

The admission arrangements for each school will remain unchanged.  The Local 
Authority is the admissions authority for each school.  Parents will apply for a place for 
their child at the school of their choice, not at the Federation, as each school in the 
federation is a separate school.  If the child is not given a place in the school they 
choose, a separate application will have to be made to attend a different school.  This is 
the case even if the second school applied for is the other school in the federation. 
 

Composition of the Governing Body: 

  
Recommended 

LA appointed  4 

   

Headteacher  1 

Teacher  2 

Staff  2 

Parent Governor  4 

Community Governor 
-  appointed by community 
-  appointed by governing body 

 4 

TOTAL  17 
 

The recommended number is derived from the maximum in each category permitted 

within the regulations in relation to parent and community governors.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The benefits of federation: 

Page 36



9 
 

 Consistency of teaching and learning methodology, especially cross-phase.  

 Reduced transitional dips in pupil performance.  

 Streamlining of policies and structures.  

 Sharing of good practice, preparation materials and resources.  

 Enhanced opportunities for pupil activities. 

 Enhanced opportunities for staff professional development.  

 Increased opportunity for middle management development.  

 Schools have options to choose a senior leadership structure to suit their 

circumstances leading to easier recruitment of staff and head teachers 

particularly if there have been difficulties.  

 Opportunities for school leadership beyond a single school.  

 Opportunities to maximise resources and professional expertise and achieve 

financial efficiencies from economies of scale.  

 Promotes the broader welfare of students by offering potential for bringing 

together pastoral, health, careers, youth and other services to meet their all-

round needs.  

 Support for schools in difficulty. Schools with strengths can contribute to the 

learning of others.  

 Supports school improvement by enabling schools to draw on the resources of 

other schools to tackle problems, share expertise, raise expectations and 

address the needs of particular groups of pupils.  

 Possible easier recruitment of governors with fewer governor vacancies. 

 Small schools in particular can additionally benefit by: Developing networks for 

personal support. Sharing expertise and resources. Organising professional 

development. Arranging joint pupil activities 

Keys to a successful federation 

 Building of trust between LAs, governors and school communities which is 

fundamental to the success of federations and must be fostered at every level of 

management.  

 Commitment of time and resources from both schools involved.  

 Shared vision and a common purpose of what needs to be done and how for 

improving attainment and achievement at all level. 

 Shared identity between the schools e.g. geographical proximity and having 

common aims on curricular and non-curricular activities  

 Clear leadership and management structures.  

 Sufficient time for all parties to be at ease with the proposed changes.  

 All to feel like equal partners.  

 Sense of ownership of process by the schools.  

 Good communication with parents and staff over the changes brought by 

federation. 

Page 37



10 
 

 

 

Challenges of federation 

 Increased workload for governors during inception and first year.  

 Initial concerns amongst governors, parents and staff – time needed for 

federation to bed down.  

However, the Governors have been working successfully on a collaborative basis for 

over 5 years. 

 

Page 38



11 
 

 

Appendix 1 

Federation (Wales) : A General Summary 

Policy :  

The Welsh Government’s policy objective is to promote collaboration between all 
parts of the education system to improve outcomes. School federation is a more 
formal way of extending collaboration and promoting closer working relationships.  
 

Legislation : 
 

The Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014. 
 

Summary : 
 

The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two and 
six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing body 
that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that 
federation.  
 

The most important reason for considering federation must be the benefits such an 
arrangement would bring for children and young people in the federating schools by 
enhancing educational provision.  
 

A federation can provide a foundation for sustainable long term development and 
improvement.  
 

To be successful, federation needs to be based on a commitment to work as a group 
of schools and a willingness to do things differently for the added benefit of all pupils, 
their well-being and achievements.  
 

One of the advantages of federation is that schools that federate remain in their 
communities and keep their individual identity. However the existing governing bodies 
will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing body which will have 
oversight of, and equal responsibility for, the work of all schools within the federation.  
 

The membership of a governing body for a federation of schools is almost identical to 
the membership of an ordinary governing body with all stakeholders being 
represented although there is more flexibility in the proportions of representation of 
each category of governor. This means that a governing body of a federation can 
choose a constitution and membership which suits their particular circumstances as 
long as they have a minimum of 15 governors and no more than a maximum of 27 
governors and adhere to the minimum and maximum numbers of governors set out in 
the regulations.  
 

Schools in a federation will maintain their own delegated budget, name, character, 
school uniform and ethos, and will also be able to explore the advantages of sharing 
resources such as facilities, IT, staff etc. 
 

A decision to federate by either schools or LAs will not override the need for a LA to 
intervene or act on school improvement or school organisation issues. 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 39



12 
 

Consultation Process  

It is a statutory requirement to seek the views of stakeholders on federation proposals, 
whether the federation has been proposed by the respective school governing bodies or 
the LA.  
 
This document represents the responsibility under The Federation of maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulation 2014 to consult with appropriate stakeholders.  
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views of 
identified stakeholders. 
  
The governing bodies and local authority will seek the views of the following 
stakeholders: 
 

 Pupils, staff, governors and parents/guardians of both schools 

 Teaching and support staff associations 
 
The consultation document will also be distributed to the following: 
 

 Local ward members for each school. 

 School Councils 

 ESTYN 

 Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 

 Education Achievement Service 
 
A copy of the proposal will also be published on the Council’s website. 
  
A copy of the proposal will also be available for inspection at all reasonable times at 
both schools in the proposed federation.  
 
The comments received from the consultation process will be reported to the governing 
bodies and local authority for final determination. 
 
The consultation period for this proposal will be 6 weeks from 22nd October 2018 to 
10th December 2018. 
 
During this period, you may express your views in writing to Cwmfelinfach Primary,  
Ynysddu Primary, or the local authority. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Timeline 

The timeline for the proposed Federation is shown in the following diagram: 

Page 40



13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 week 

Consultation 

 

Joint meeting of Governing  
Bodies and local authority 
 to consider responses and  

make final decision 

 

Develop new Instrument of Governance for the single 
Governing Body; election and appointment of governors 

Single Governing Body meets to elect Chair and  
Vice-Chair 

 

January 2019 

July 2019 

    July 2019 

Federation fully established 

22 October – 10 December 2018 

  September 2019 

Scrutiny 

Cabinet 

 

April 2019 

April 2019 

Page 41



14 
 

 
 

Appendix 3 

 

Frequently Asked Questions around Federation relating to Welsh Government 

Guidance 

Q1. What is a Federation? 

A federation is a legal governance structure where between two and six schools share 

a single governing body. The schools will retain their individuality, their own name, 

ethos, budget and school uniform but could share resources, facilities and good 

practice. 

Q2. Why should schools federate? 

Working together through a single governing body structure enables schools to raise 

standards and maintain local education provision by sharing resources, staff, expertise, 

and facilities and sharing best practice. A single governing body also provides an 

effective and accountable mechanism for schools to pool resources, including staff and 

budgets, release capacity in the senior management team and gain economies of scale 

and efficiencies. 

Q3. What are the benefits of federation? 

Federation will allow schools to more easily:  

 extend the breadth and quality of provision  

 respond to pupils’ wider needs  

 facilitate the release of our strongest school leaders teachers and governors to 

assist poorer performing schools  

 widen opportunities for staff professional development  

 deliver greater value for money. 

Q4. Why might small schools benefit from federation? 

Federation can help small rural primary schools to remain sustainable within their 

communities. The shared governing body provides an effective and accountable 

mechanism for schools to pool resources and staff, gain economies of scale and 

efficiencies that enable them to remain viable. Smaller schools in more rural and 

isolated areas could also gain as federation could open up opportunities to share 

management, governing body responsibility and curriculum expertise. For small primary 

it would allow them to deliver an enriched primary education by for example, sharing a 

specialist language teacher or drama teacher. 

Page 42



15 
 

 

Q5. What are the benefits and risks of Federation? 

There are a number of benefits for schools from being within a federation including 

broader learning and social experiences for children leading to improvement in pupil 

performance. Schools will be able to share resources, best practice, facilities and 

expertise. There can be further emphasis on strategic leadership and management 

structures, and staff will have new opportunities to work together and reduce isolation. 

Duplication of effort can be avoided and there is an opportunity to promote better 

economies of scale. 

Some of the risks include the potential organisational difficulties in providing a 

curriculum across a number of schools. Communication with parents and staff at 

different schools may present a challenge. Travel costs may be higher if staff and pupils 

move between schools to meet curriculum needs. There may also be relationship and 

trust issues for governors, head teachers and staff working across schools. The 

federated governing body should be aware of the potential risks and have strategies 

and actions to mitigate them. 

Q6. Will my school lose its identity within a Federation? 

Schools within a federation will not lose their individual identity though they will share a 

single governing body. The schools retain their separate legal status and have their 

own budget allocations and will be subject to their own Estyn Inspection. The schools 

will also remain in their community and retain their own character, name, ethos and 

school uniform. Whilst each school receives and must account for its own separate 

budget, there is scope, through the single governing body, to use pooled budgets 

across the schools in the federation. Federation works on the basis that all schools 

have their own particular strengths and advantages, whether it is facilities, staff or 

resources. 

Q7. What are the Inspection arrangements for Federated Schools? 

Estyn’s document ‘When will the next school inspection take place?’ sets out guidance 

on inspecting federated schools. The Education (School Inspection) (Wales) 

Regulations 2006 require Estyn to inspect maintained schools every six years and 

produce an individual report for each school. This would also apply to schools in the 

federation. Estyn cannot move a school inspection to later than six years but may carry 

out inspections in a way that the schools in a federation are inspected in the same term, 

especially where the schools have the same Headteacher. Estyn would also consider 

requests from a governing body or LA to inspect schools in the same term. Estyn would 

also try to ensure that the inspection teams for the schools in a federation have 

overlapping membership. 

Page 43



16 
 

 

 

Q8. What happens to staff within a federation? Will their Conditions of Service change? 

In a federation, all staff would be employed on the same conditions of service as now 

and by the same employer. Whoever is the employer of staff will continue to be the 

employer under the contract of employment. For community, voluntary controlled, 

community special schools and maintained nursery schools, the LA is the employer 

under the contract of employment although the governing body of the federation retains 

responsibility for certain staffing functions i.e. staff grievance, capability, redundancy, 

staff disciplinary and dismissal matters and appointments. The governing body is the 

employer under the contract of employment for staff in voluntary aided and foundation 

schools. 

Combined strategic and financial planning should mean that jobs can be better 

protected in any combined period of contraction and that specialist staff can be used to 

best effect, recognising that all support and teaching staff have specialist skills and 

knowledge. Staff would be able to learn from each other within a coherent approach to 

deliver professional learning communities that use data and the National Model to focus 

on school improvements that link to national priorities and their school development 

plans. 

The governing body of a federation would also be able to appoint new staff to work 

within all schools in the federation. This could include the appointment of a single 

Headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in the federation, or the appointment 

of a Bursar or person with financial management skills and/or business management 

skills to oversee the non-teaching aspects of the federation business. 

Q9. Can a federation have a single Headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in 

that federation? 

Yes, if that is what the schools wish to have and this might be a viable option in a 

federation of small rural primary schools. Where this option is chosen for a larger 

federation of up to six schools, i.e. a secondary school and its feeder primary schools 

where each of those schools has a large number of pupils, governing bodies and local 

authorities should consider how this arrangement could be managed and any support 

structure a single Headteacher might require. For example, consideration could be 

given to implementing a management structure that addresses the individual needs of 

each of the schools whilst also supporting curriculum continuity across the federation. 

This could mean having staff in each school whose purpose is to focus on teaching and 

learning supplemented by a structure of posts that work across the federation, all of 

which would be managed by a single Headteacher. 

Another option governing bodies and local authorities may consider is for the federating 

schools to retain head teachers in each of the schools instead of appointing a single 

Headteacher. 

Page 44



17 
 

 

 

From a day to day operational perspective schools may wish to adopt a third option 

which would be to appoint a head of the federation and retain a Headteacher in each of 

the schools. If this arrangement was agreed, from a governance perspective only, the 

overarching Headteacher in charge of the federation, if such an appointment is made, 

would be a member of the governing body. If no such appointment is made the head 

teachers of all the schools may be governors. 

Q10. Would the ‘Headteacher’ with overall responsibility for the federation be 

responsible for managing head teachers of each school in the federation if that is the 

agreed structure? 

The governing body may choose to appoint a single head of the federation with full 

responsibility for all of the schools in the federation and have only a senior teacher or 

deputy Headteacher in charge of each school. If the teacher in charge is not a qualified 

Headteacher carrying out the full range of statutory duties of a Headteacher, then the 

head of the federation would be responsible for the performance management of those 

staff. The governing body would be responsible for the performance management of the 

head of the federation. 

Q11. How should heads of federations be paid? 

Following a recommendation from the School Teachers’ Review Body (STRB) the 

Department for Education in England is currently updating the Teachers’ Pay and 

Condition document to reflect interim payments for head teachers who take 

responsibility for more than one school. 

Q12. Are parent governors elected by the parents from their school only or from parents 

across all schools in the federation? 

The proposal for federation should state the number of parent governors from each 

school which in law is that every school must have at least one parent governor elected 

by the parents (or appointed by the governing body if no parent stands for election), at 

that school but no more than two parent governors per school. It is reasonable therefore 

that once a decision has been made as to how many parent governors each school 

would have, the parents of only that school should vote in the parent governor 

elections. If the decision is that a school should have two parent governors each, and 

no parents in a particular school stand for election or only one parent stands for 

election, the federated governing body may appoint parent governors in accordance 

with Schedule 2 of the 2014 Federation Regulations. This means that the governing 

body could appoint a parent of a registered pupil at the school; or the parent of a 

registered pupil from another school in the federation; or the parent of a child of 

compulsory school age (or under compulsory school age for a nursery school). 

Page 45



18 
 

 

 

Q13. Can a Federation be time-limited? 

A federation should be seen as a long term commitment and not as a quick fix. The LA 

or respective governing bodies will have considered in depth the benefits and risks of 

establishing a federation in relation to the impact on children and young people’s 

achievements. A federation would put in place strategic and operational plans to insure 

the sustainability and development of the schools. That will require medium to long term 

planning. Nonetheless, the 2014 Federation Regulations do allow individual schools to 

leave a federation and for a federation to be dissolved. 

Q14. Should we be working collaboratively as a first step with schools we may be 

thinking of federating with? 

If you work collaboratively with other schools it may help you to create trust between the 

schools and will enable you to foster a good working relationship which will make it 

easier for the schools to take the next step and federate. Federation will be successful 

where the staff and governors are committed to working together for the benefit of the 

school communities. 

Q15. Can schools establish a joint governing body before formally federating? 

No – the governing body of the federated schools comes into being on the date the 

federation comes into force which must be at least 125 days from the date the 

federation proposals are published (or 100 days if small schools are being federated). 

This means that the governing bodies of the schools that are federating will have to 

have held elections for the core governors i.e. parents, teacher and staff and the LA will 

have to have appointed their LA governors. On the date the federation comes into force 

the newly constituted single governing body can meet and appoint their community 

governors. The schools may however set up a joint working group or committee of 

governors to oversee the federation process if they wish. 

Q16. Can we change the name of the school and or give all the schools in the 

federation the same name? 

One of the key drivers and benefits for federation is that schools do not lose their 

individuality, name and identity and remain as separate establishments. The names of 

all the schools in the federation will appear on the new instrument of government as 

well as the name of the federation. The process for revising the instrument of 

government and changing details such as the names of the schools is set out in the 

Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005. The LA and the 

governing body should reach an agreement on the proposed changes. If they cannot 

the final decision rests with the LA who will want to ensure that any changes are not 

misleading. 

All schools in a federation must retain their individual reference number and budget and 

it could become quite complex and confusing if all the schools decided to change their 

name and adopt a single name when they have to account for separate budgets. 

Page 46



19 
 

Response Form 

Proposal to Federate Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary Schools 

Please note that we will make any comments that you make publicly available as part of the 

subsequent report.  You are not asked to provide your personal details.  All the information you 

provide will be handled in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998. 

Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other 
 

I support the proposal 
 

I do not support the proposal 
 

Please provide your comments on the proposal to federate Cwmfelinfach and Ynysddu Primary 

schools: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Print Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
 

Category of respondent (e.g. parent) ________________________________________ 
 
If parent which school does your child attend:_________________________________ 
 

Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Postcode: ____________________     E-mail: ______________________________ 
 
Once completed, please return to:  

 Cwmfelinfach Primary School, King Street, Cwmfelinfach, Ynysddu, NP11 7HL    OR  

 Ynysddu Primary School, High Street, Ynysddu, NP11 7JH        OR 

 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer, Caerphilly County Borough Council, Ty Penallta, 
Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed, CF82 7PG. 

 
The closing date for responses is Monday 10th December 2018. 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 48



1 
 

Appendix B 

 

Proposal to Establish a School Federation 

Incorporating Gilfach Fargoed and  

Park Primary schools 
 

Consultation Document 

 

     

 

Governing Body, Gilfach Fargoed Primary School   

 

Governing Body, Park Primary School 

 

In partnership 

 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (Education and Lifelong Learning)       

 

 

September 2018 

 

 

Page 49



2 
 

 

FOREWORD 

The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two and 
six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing body 
that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that 
federation. 
 
The governing bodies of Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary Schools have met 
individually and jointly with the local authority to promote a formal federation involving 
the 2 schools. 
 
Whilst both schools will continue to have their own individual identity with regards to 
name, culture, ethos and continue to manage their own budgets, this process involves 
establishing a single governing body to govern the two schools. 
 
Both schools’ governing bodies have worked collaboratively over the last couple of 
years and this is continuing to impact positively upon both schools. 
 
The local Authority is responsible for promoting high educational standards and for 
delivering efficient primary and secondary education.  Having effective leaders in its 
schools is considered central to this and is a challenge facing councils across Wales. 
 
As such this consultation document sets out the case for a change to the leadership 
and governance arrangements at Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary schools.  The 
consultation document has been prepared jointly by the governing bodies and the local 
authority. 
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views of 
identified stakeholders.  Appendices to this document refer to general conditions for the 
Federation of Schools and as such should be read in the appropriate context to the 
federation of Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary Schools. 
 
This consultation document seeks to provide information to allow you to make an 
informed decision as regards the proposal.  Page 19 includes a response pro-forma 
which can be returned to either Gilfach Fargoed or Park Primary Schools or the local 
authority.  All feedback whether positive or negative would be appreciated. 
 
Both governing bodies are proposing this formal federation development.  We look 
forward to receiving your views on the proposal. 
 
 
Howard Llewellyn     Diane Price 
Chair of Governors     Chair of Governors  
Gilfach Fargoed Primary School   Park Primary School 
 
 
Keri Cole 
Chief Education Officer 
Caerphilly County Borough Council 
 

 

Table of Contents 

Page 50



3 
 

 

Section Description Page(s) 

 
1 
 

 
The Proposal 

 
4 

 
2 
 

 
Background 

 
5-6 

 
3 

 
Key Facts 
 

 
6 

 
4 

 
Admission Arrangements & Composition of the 
Governing Body 
 

 
7 

 
5 

 
Benefits and Challenges of Federation 
 

 
8-9 

 
6 

 
Appendix 1:  Federation (Wales) : A Summary 
 

 
10 

 
7 

 
Appendix 2:  Consultation Process & Timeline 
 

 
11-12 

 
8 

 
Appendix 3:  Frequently Asked Questions 
 

 
13-17 

 
9 

 
Response Form 
 

 
19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Proposal 

 

The governing bodies of Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary schools, together with 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (the Local Authority) proposes to use the powers 

Page 51



4 
 

granted to it by the Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 

establish The Federation of Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary schools.  

The governing bodies of both Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary schools have 
consulted with the local authority (Caerphilly County Borough Council) and all are in 
support of the proposal.  
 
The aim of the Federation is for the schools to work in partnership to: 
 

 develop the excellent shared practice that guarantees outstanding 
experiences and increased opportunities for pupils and staff 
 

 develop the common goals and reflective approaches to teaching and 
learning that will ensure that both communities benefit from a quality education. 

 
This will ensure significant positive outcomes and improved standards for all. 
 
The term ‘Federation’ describes a formal and legal agreement by which both schools 
work together in formal partnership under a single governing body. The existing 
governing bodies will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing body with 
strategic oversight of both schools.  
 
The proposed name of the Federation is ‘The Federation of Gilfach Fargoed and Park 
Primary Schools’.  
 
If the proposal is accepted, the Federation will come into being on 1 September 2019, 
albeit it is proposed to further develop joint working over the next 12 months. 
 

Page 52



5 
 

 

Background 

 
Both schools have worked on a collaborative basis since September 2016. 
 
This collaborative approach remains in place and continues to impact positively on both 
schools. 
 
Gilfach Fargoed Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school.  

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 168 

Admission Number 24 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – excluding 
Nursery 

170 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year average 
(2014-2017) 

27.9% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 24.5 

Attendance during the year 94.8% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in the core 
subjects at key stage 2 

89.5% 

Pupils achieving the expected outcome in the 
foundation phase areas of learning 

    90.5% 

Support Category (2017) Green 

 

Park Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school. 

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 144 

Admission Number 20 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – excluding 
Nursery 

104 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year average 
(2014-2017) 

54% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 20.6 

Attendance during the year 94.6% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in the core 
subjects at key stage 2 

81.8% 

Pupils achieving the expected outcome in the 
foundation phase areas of learning 

93.3% 

Support Category (2017) Amber 

 
.      The two schools are located only 0.5 miles apart.  

 
By entering into a federation, the two schools can work together under shared 
leadership to utilise their strengths to improve standards across the federation and 
together address areas in need of improvement.  
 
By federating under one governing body, the climate of trust, openness and willingness 
to work together that already exists can be further enhanced.  
 

Page 53



6 
 

Key facts: 

 There will be a single governing body with strategic oversight of both schools 
within the federation. 

 

 Each school retains its name, category, budget, staff, uniform and remains in its 
community.  

 

 Each school will have its own Estyn inspection, though increasingly these are co-
ordinated to happen at the same time for all schools within the federation to 
minimise stress and disruption.  

 

 The governing body of a federation can continue to use resources and staff 
across the federation to improve the educational outcomes for all pupils.  

 

 An audit trail must be kept and separate accounts produced for each school in 
the federation.  

 

 The Federated governing body cannot require existing staff to work across both 
schools, but they can negotiate with the school’s staff unions over whether 
flexible contracts can be introduced.  

 

 New staff can be appointed to work across schools in the federation.  

Page 54



7 
 

 

 

Admission Arrangements 

The admission arrangements for each school will remain unchanged.  The Local 
Authority is the admissions authority for each school.  Parents will apply for a place for 
their child at the school of their choice, not at the Federation, as each school in the 
federation is a separate school.  If the child is not given a place in the school they 
choose, a separate application will have to be made to attend a different school.  This is 
the case even if the second school applied for is the other school in the federation. 
 

Composition of the Governing Body: 

  
Recommended 

LA appointed  4 

   

Headteacher  1 

Teacher  2 

Staff  2 

Parent Governor  4 

Community Governor 
-  appointed by community 
-  appointed by governing body 

 5 
4 
1 

TOTAL  18 
 

The recommended number is derived from the maximum in each category permitted 

within the regulations in relation to parent and community governors.  To accommodate 

present numbers, it is proposed that any existing governors displaced will be co-opted 

for the remainder of their term of office.  Thereafter numbers can be reduced to align 

with the Welsh Government Regulations over time.

Page 55



8 
 

 

The benefits of federation: 

 Consistency of teaching and learning methodology, especially cross-phase.  

 Reduced transitional dips in pupil performance.  

 Streamlining of policies and structures.  

 Sharing of good practice, preparation materials and resources.  

 Enhanced opportunities for pupil activities. 

 Enhanced opportunities for staff professional development.  

 Increased opportunity for middle management development.  

 Schools have options to choose a senior leadership structure to suit their 

circumstances leading to easier recruitment of staff and head teachers 

particularly if there have been difficulties.  

 Opportunities for school leadership beyond a single school.  

 Opportunities to maximise resources and professional expertise and achieve 

financial efficiencies from economies of scale.  

 Promotes the broader welfare of students by offering potential for bringing 

together pastoral, health, careers, youth and other services to meet their all-

round needs.  

 Support for schools in difficulty. Schools with strengths can contribute to the 

learning of others.  

 Supports school improvement by enabling schools to draw on the resources of 

other schools to tackle problems, share expertise, raise expectations and 

address the needs of particular groups of pupils.  

 Possible easier recruitment of governors with fewer governor vacancies. 

 Small schools in particular can additionally benefit by: Developing networks for 

personal support. Sharing expertise and resources. Organising professional 

development. Arranging joint pupil activities 

Keys to a successful federation 

 Building of trust between LAs, governors and school communities which is 

fundamental to the success of federations and must be fostered at every level of 

management.  

 Commitment of time and resources from both schools involved.  

 Shared vision and a common purpose of what needs to be done and how for 

improving attainment and achievement at all level. 

 Shared identity between the schools e.g. geographical proximity and having 

common aims on curricular and non-curricular activities  

 Clear leadership and management structures.  

 Sufficient time for all parties to be at ease with the proposed changes.  

 All to feel like equal partners.  

 Sense of ownership of process by the schools.  

 Good communication with parents and staff over the changes brought by 

federation. 

Page 56



9 
 

 

 

Challenges of federation 

 Increased workload for governors during inception and first year.  

 Initial concerns amongst governors, parents and staff – time needed for 

federation to bed down.  

However, the Governors have been working successfully on collaborative basis since 

September 2016. 

 

Page 57



10 
 

 

Appendix 1 

Federation (Wales) : A General Summary 

Policy :  

The Welsh Government’s policy objective is to promote collaboration between all 
parts of the education system to improve outcomes. School federation is a more 
formal way of extending collaboration and promoting closer working relationships.  
 
Legislation : 
 
The Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014. 
 
Summary : 
 
The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two and 
six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing body 
that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that 
federation.  
 
The most important reason for considering federation must be the benefits such an 

arrangement would bring for children and young people in the federating schools by 

enhancing educational provision.  

A federation can provide a foundation for sustainable long term development and 
improvement.  
 
To be successful, federation needs to be based on a commitment to work as a group 
of schools and a willingness to do things differently for the added benefit of all pupils, 
their well-being and achievements.  
 
One of the advantages of federation is that schools that federate remain in their 
communities and keep their individual identity. However the existing governing bodies 
will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing body which will have 
oversight of, and equal responsibility for, the work of all schools within the federation.  
 
The membership of a governing body for a federation of schools is almost identical to 
the membership of an ordinary governing body with all stakeholders being 
represented although there is more flexibility in the proportions of representation of 
each category of governor. This means that a governing body of a federation can 
choose a constitution and membership which suits their particular circumstances as 
long as they have a minimum of 15 governors and no more than a maximum of 27 
governors and adhere to the minimum and maximum numbers of governors set out in 
the regulations.  
 
Schools in a federation will also be able to maintain their own delegated budget, 
name, character, school uniform and ethos, but will be able to explore the advantages 
of sharing resources such as facilities, IT, staff, school buildings etc. 
 
A decision to federate by either schools or LAs will not override the need for a LA to 
intervene or act on school improvement or school organisation issues. 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 58



11 
 

Consultation Process  

It is a statutory requirement to seek the views of stakeholders on federation proposals, 
whether the federation has been proposed by the respective school governing bodies or 
the LA.  
 
This document represents the responsibility under The Federation of maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulation 2014 to consult with appropriate stakeholders.  
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views of 
identified stakeholders. 
  
The governing bodies and local authority will seek the views of the following 
stakeholders: 
 

 Pupils, staff, governors and parents/guardians of both schools 

 Teaching and support staff associations 
 
The consultation document will also be distributed to the following: 

 

 Local ward members for each school. 

 School Councils 

 ESTYN 

 Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 

 Education Achievement Service 
 
 
A copy of the proposal will also be published on the Council’s website. A copy of the 
proposal will also be available for inspection at all reasonable times at both schools in 
the proposed federation.  
 
The comments received from the consultation process will be reported to the governing 
bodies and local authority for determination. 
 
The consultation period for this proposal will be 6 weeks from 22nd October 2018 to 
10th December 2018. 
During this period, you may express your views in writing to Gilfach Fargoed Primary,  
Park Primary, or the local authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Timeline 

The timeline for the proposed Federation is shown in the following diagram: 

 

  

6 week 
Consultation 

22 October – 10 December 2018 

Page 59



12 
 

 

 

 

 

Joint meeting of Governing  
Bodies and local authority 
 to consider responses and  

make final decision 

 

Develop new Instrument of Governance for the single 
Governing Body; election and appointment of governors 

Single Governing Body meets to elect Chair and  
Vice-Chair 

 

January 2019 

July 2019 

    July 2019 

Federation fully established 
  September 2019 

Scrutiny 

Cabinet 

 

April 2019 

April 2019 

Page 60



13 
 

 
 

Appendix 3 

 

Frequently Asked Questions 

Q1. What is a Federation? 

A federation is a legal governance structure where between two and six schools share 

a single governing body. The schools will retain their individuality, their own name, 

ethos, budget and school uniform but could share resources, facilities and good 

practice. 

Q2. Why should schools federate? 

Working together through a single governing body structure enables schools to raise 

standards and maintain local education provision by sharing resources, staff, expertise, 

and facilities and sharing best practice. A single governing body also provides an 

effective and accountable mechanism for schools to pool resources, including staff and 

budgets, release capacity in the senior management team and gain economies of scale 

and efficiencies. 

Q3. What are the benefits of federation? 

Federation will allow schools to more easily:  

 extend the breadth and quality of provision  

 respond to pupils’ wider needs  

 facilitate the release of our strongest school leaders teachers and governors to 

assist poorer performing schools  

 widen opportunities for staff professional development  

 deliver greater value for money. 

Q4. Why might small schools benefit from federation? 

Federation can help small rural primary schools to remain sustainable within their 

communities. The shared governing body provides an effective and accountable 

mechanism for schools to pool resources and staff, gain economies of scale and 

efficiencies that enable them to remain viable. Smaller schools in more rural and 

isolated areas could also gain as federation could open up opportunities to share 

management, governing body responsibility and curriculum expertise. For small primary 

it would allow them to deliver an enriched primary education by for example, sharing a 

specialist language teacher or drama teacher. 

Page 61



14 
 

 

Q5. What are the benefits and risks of Federation? 

There are a number of benefits for schools from being within a federation including 

broader learning and social experiences for children leading to improvement in pupil 

performance. Schools will be able to share resources, best practice, facilities and 

expertise. There can be further emphasis on strategic leadership and management 

structures, and staff will have new opportunities to work together and reduce isolation. 

Duplication of effort can be avoided and there is an opportunity to promote better 

economies of scale. 

Some of the risks include the potential organisational difficulties in providing a 

curriculum across a number of schools. Communication with parents and staff at 

different schools may present a challenge. Travel costs may be higher if staff and pupils 

move between schools to meet curriculum needs. There may also be relationship and 

trust issues for governors, head teachers and staff working across schools. The 

federated governing body should be aware of the potential risks and have strategies 

and actions to mitigate them. 

Q6. Will my school lose its identity within a Federation? 

Schools within a federation will not lose their individual identity though they will share a 

single governing body. The schools retain their separate legal status and have their 

own budget allocations and will be subject to their own Estyn Inspection. The schools 

will also remain in their community and retain their own character, name, ethos and 

school uniform. Whilst each school receives and must account for its own separate 

budget, there is scope, through the single governing body, to use pooled budgets 

across the schools in the federation. Federation works on the basis that all schools 

have their own particular strengths and advantages, whether it is facilities, staff or 

resources. 

Q7. What are the Inspection arrangements for Federated Schools? 

Estyn’s document ‘When will the next school inspection take place?’ sets out guidance 

on inspecting federated schools. The Education (School Inspection) (Wales) 

Regulations 2006 require Estyn to inspect maintained schools every six years and 

produce an individual report for each school. This would also apply to schools in the 

federation. Estyn cannot move a school inspection to later than six years but may carry 

out inspections in a way that the schools in a federation are inspected in the same term, 

especially where the schools have the same Headteacher. Estyn would also consider 

requests from a governing body or LA to inspect schools in the same term. Estyn would 

also try to ensure that the inspection teams for the schools in a federation have 

overlapping membership. 

Page 62



15 
 

 

 

Q8. What happens to staff within a federation? Will their Conditions of Service change? 

In a federation, all staff would be employed on the same conditions of service as now 

and by the same employer. Whoever is the employer of staff will continue to be the 

employer under the contract of employment. For community, voluntary controlled, 

community special schools and maintained nursery schools, the LA is the employer 

under the contract of employment although the governing body of the federation retains 

responsibility for certain staffing functions i.e. staff grievance, capability, redundancy, 

staff disciplinary and dismissal matters and appointments. The governing body is the 

employer under the contract of employment for staff in voluntary aided and foundation 

schools. 

Combined strategic and financial planning should mean that jobs can be better 

protected in any combined period of contraction and that specialist staff can be used to 

best effect, recognising that all support and teaching staff have specialist skills and 

knowledge. Staff would be able to learn from each other within a coherent approach to 

deliver professional learning communities that use data and the National Model to focus 

on school improvements that link to national priorities and their school development 

plans. 

The governing body of a federation would also be able to appoint new staff to work 

within all schools in the federation. This could include the appointment of a single 

Headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in the federation, or the appointment 

of a Bursar or person with financial management skills and/or business management 

skills to oversee the non-teaching aspects of the federation business. 

Q9. Can a federation have a single Headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in 

that federation? 

Yes, if that is what the schools wish to have and this might be a viable option in a 

federation of small rural primary schools. Where this option is chosen for a larger 

federation of up to six schools, i.e. a secondary school and its feeder primary schools 

where each of those schools has a large number of pupils, governing bodies and local 

authorities should consider how this arrangement could be managed and any support 

structure a single Headteacher might require. For example, consideration could be 

given to implementing a management structure that addresses the individual needs of 

each of the schools whilst also supporting curriculum continuity across the federation. 

This could mean having staff in each school whose purpose is to focus on teaching and 

learning supplemented by a structure of posts that work across the federation, all of 

which would be managed by a single Headteacher. 

Another option governing bodies and local authorities may consider is for the federating 

schools to retain head teachers in each of the schools instead of appointing a single 

Headteacher. 

Page 63



16 
 

 

 

From a day to day operational perspective schools may wish to adopt a third option 

which would be to appoint a head of the federation and retain a Headteacher in each of 

the schools. If this arrangement was agreed, from a governance perspective only, the 

overarching Headteacher in charge of the federation, if such an appointment is made, 

would be a member of the governing body. If no such appointment is made the head 

teachers of all the schools may be governors. 

Q10. Would the ‘Headteacher’ with overall responsibility for the federation be 

responsible for managing head teachers of each school in the federation if that is the 

agreed structure? 

The governing body may choose to appoint a single head of the federation with full 

responsibility for all of the schools in the federation and have only a senior teacher or 

deputy Headteacher in charge of each school. If the teacher in charge is not a qualified 

Headteacher carrying out the full range of statutory duties of a Headteacher, then the 

head of the federation would be responsible for the performance management of those 

staff. The governing body would be responsible for the performance management of the 

head of the federation. 

Q11. How should heads of federations be paid? 

Following a recommendation from the School Teachers’ Review Body (STRB) the 

Department for Education in England is currently updating the Teachers’ Pay and 

Condition document to reflect interim payments for head teachers who take 

responsibility for more than one school. 

Q12. Are parent governors elected by the parents from their school only or from parents 

across all schools in the federation? 

The proposal for federation should state the number of parent governors from each 

school which in law is that every school must have at least one parent governor elected 

by the parents (or appointed by the governing body if no parent stands for election), at 

that school but no more than two parent governors per school. It is reasonable therefore 

that once a decision has been made as to how many parent governors each school 

would have, the parents of only that school should vote in the parent governor 

elections. If the decision is that a school should have two parent governors each, and 

no parents in a particular school stand for election or only one parent stands for 

election, the federated governing body may appoint parent governors in accordance 

with Schedule 2 of the 2014 Federation Regulations. This means that the governing 

body could appoint a parent of a registered pupil at the school; or the parent of a 

registered pupil from another school in the federation; or the parent of a child of 

compulsory school age (or under compulsory school age for a nursery school). 

Page 64



17 
 

 

 

Q13. Can a Federation be time-limited? 

A federation should be seen as a long term commitment and not as a quick fix. The LA 

or respective governing bodies will have considered in depth the benefits and risks of 

establishing a federation in relation to the impact on children and young people’s 

achievements. A federation would put in place strategic and operational plans to insure 

the sustainability and development of the schools. That will require medium to long term 

planning. Nonetheless, the 2014 Federation Regulations do allow individual schools to 

leave a federation and for a federation to be dissolved. 

Q14. Should we be working collaboratively as a first step with schools we may be 

thinking of federating with? 

If you work collaboratively with other schools it may help you to create trust between the 

schools and will enable you to foster a good working relationship which will make it 

easier for the schools to take the next step and federate. Federation will be successful 

where the staff and governors are committed to working together for the benefit of the 

school communities. 

Q15. Can schools establish a joint governing body before formally federating? 

No – the governing body of the federated schools comes into being on the date the 

federation comes into force which must be at least 125 days from the date the 

federation proposals are published (or 100 days if small schools are being federated). 

This means that the governing bodies of the schools that are federating will have to 

have held elections for the core governors i.e. parents, teacher and staff and the LA will 

have to have appointed their LA governors. On the date the federation comes into force 

the newly constituted single governing body can meet and appoint their community 

governors. The schools may however set up a joint working group or committee of 

governors to oversee the federation process if they wish. 

Q16. Can we change the name of the school and or give all the schools in the 

federation the same name? 

One of the key drivers and benefits for federation is that schools do not lose their 

individuality, name and identity and remain as separate establishments. The names of 

all the schools in the federation will appear on the new instrument of government as 

well as the name of the federation. The process for revising the instrument of 

government and changing details such as the names of the schools is set out in the 

Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005. The LA and the 

governing body should reach an agreement on the proposed changes. If they cannot 

the final decision rests with the LA who will want to ensure that any changes are not 

misleading. 

All schools in a federation must retain their individual reference number and budget and 

it could become quite complex and confusing if all the schools decided to change their 

name and adopt a single name when they have to account for separate budgets. 

Page 65



18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



19 
 

Response Form 

Proposal to Federate Gilfach Fargoed and Park Primary Schools 

Please note that we will make any comments that you make publicly available as part of the 

subsequent report.  You are not asked to provide your personal details.  All the information you 

provide will be handled in accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018. 

Please provide your comments on the proposal to federate Gilfach Fargoed  and Park Primary 

schools: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Alternatively, you may wish to indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your 
views: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other 
 

I support the proposal 
 

I do not support the proposal 
 

Print Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
 

Category of respondent (e.g. parent) ________________________________________ 
 

Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Postcode: ____________________     E-mail: ______________________________ 
 
Once completed, please return to:  

 Gilfach Fargoed Primary School, Vere Street, Bargoed, CF81 8LB    OR  

 Park Primary School, Park Crescent, Bargoed, CF81 8PN       OR 

 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer, Caerphilly County Borough Council, Ty Penallta, 
Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed, CF82 7PG. 

 
The closing date for responses is Monday 10th December 2018. 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 68



1 
 

Appendix C 

 

Proposal to Establish a School Federation 

Incorporating Fleur-De-Lis and Pengam 

Primary Schools 
 

Consultation Document 

 

      

 

Governing Body, Fleur De Lis Primary School 

 

Governing Body, Pengam Primary School   

 

In partnership with 

 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (Education and Lifelong Learning)       

 

September 2018 

 

Page 69



2 
 

FOREWORD 

The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two and 
six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing body 
that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that 
federation. 
 
The governing bodies of Fleur de Lis and Pengam Primary Schools have met 
individually and jointly with the local authority to promote a formal federation involving 
the 2 schools. 
 
Whilst both schools will continue to have their own individual identity with regards to 
name, culture, ethos and continue to manage their own budgets, this process involves 
establishing a single governing body to govern the two schools. 
 
Both schools’ governing bodies have worked collaboratively over the last couple of 
years and this is continuing to impact positively upon both schools. 
 
The local Authority is responsible for promoting high educational standards and for 
delivering efficient primary and secondary education.  Having effective leaders in its 
schools is considered central to this and is a challenge facing councils across Wales. 
 
As such this consultation document sets out the case for a change to the leadership 
and governance arrangements at  Fleur de Lis and Pengam  Primary schools.  The 
consultation document has been prepared jointly by the governing bodies and the local 
authority. 
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views of 
identified stakeholders.  Appendices to this document refer to general conditions for the 
Federation of Schools and as such should be read in the appropriate context to the 
federation of Fleur de Lis and Pengam Primary Schools. 
 
This consultation document seeks to provide information to allow you to make an 
informed decision as regards the proposal.  Page 19 includes a response pro-forma 
which can be returned to either Fleur de Lis and Pengam  Primary Schools or the local 
authority.  All feedback whether positive or negative would be appreciated. 
 
Both governing bodies are proposing this formal federation development.  We look 
forward to receiving your views on the proposal. 
 

Chris Byrne      Dewi Lloyd   

Chair of Governors     Chair of Governors 

Pengam Primary School    Fleur De Lis Primary School       

 

Keri Cole 

Chief Education Officer 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 

 

 

 

Page 70



3 
 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Section Description Page(s) 

 
1 
 

 
The Proposal 

 
4 

 
2 
 

 
Background 

 
5-6 

 
3 

 
Federation (Wales) : A Summary 
 

 
7 

 
4 

 
Key Facts 
 

 
8 

 
5 

 
Consultation Process 
 

 
9-10 

 
6 

 
Admission Arrangements & Composition of the 
Governing Body 
 

 
11 

 
7 

 
Benefits and Challenges of Federation 
 

 
12-13 

 
8 

 
Frequently Asked Questions 
 

 
14-18 

 
9 

 
Response Form 
 

 
20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



4 
 

The Proposal 

The governing bodies of and Fleur de Lis and Pengam Primary Schools, together with 
Caerphilly County Borough Council (the LA) propose to use the powers granted to it by 
the Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014 to establish The 
Federation of Pengam and Fleur De Lis Primary schools.  
 
Both schools have worked on a collaborative basis for over 15 years 
 
The governing bodies of both Fleur De Lis and Pengam Primary Schools have 
consulted with the local authority (Caerphilly County Borough Council) and all are in 
support of the proposal.  
 
The aim of the Federation is for the schools to work in partnership to: 
 

 develop the excellent shared practice that guarantees outstanding 
experiences and increased opportunities for pupils and staff 
 

 develop the common goals and reflective approaches to teaching and 
learning that will ensure that both communities benefit from a quality education. 

 
This will ensure significant positive outcomes and improved standards for all. 
 
The term ‘Federation’ describes a formal and legal agreement by which the schools 
involved work together in formal partnership under a single governing body. The 
existing governing bodies will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing 
body with strategic oversight of both schools.  
 
The proposed name of the Federation is ‘The Federation of Fleur De Lis and Pengam  
Primary Schools’.  
 
If the proposal is accepted, the Federation will come into being on 1 September 2019. 
 

Page 72



5 
 

 

Background 

Both schools have worked on a collaborative basis for over 15 years 
 
This collaborative approach remains in place and continues to impact positively on both 
schools. 
 
Pengam Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school.  

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 198 

Admission Number 28 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – Excluding 
Nursery 

178 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year average 
(2014-2017) 

18.6% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 26.2 

Attendance during the year 94.6% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in the 
core subjects at key stage 2 

96.3% 

Pupils achieving the expected outcome in the 
foundation phase areas of learning 

86.2% 

Support Category (2017) Green 

 
Fleur De Lis Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school. 

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 144 

Admission Number 20 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – Excluding 
Nursery 

116 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year average 
(2014-2017) 

17.6% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 21.2 

Attendance during the year 93.8% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in the core 
subjects at key stage 2 

85.7% 

Pupils achieving the expected outcome in the 
foundation phase areas of learning 

92.9% 

Support Category (2017) Green 

 
Both Fleur de Lis and Pengam Primary Schools are a categorisation green support 
category.  This means they are highly effective schools which are well run, have strong 
leadership and are clear about their priorities for improvement.  The schools have a 
track record in delivering excellent outcomes for their pupils.       
.   
The two schools are located only 0.9 miles apart.  
 
By entering into a federation, the two schools will continue to work together under 
shared leadership to utilise their strengths to improve standards across the federation 

Page 73



6 
 

and together address areas in need of improvement. By federating under one governing 
body, the climate of trust, openness and willingness to work together that already exists 
can be further enhanced. The governing body will ensure there is fairness in the share 
of the resources allocated to each school. 
 
Collaboration 
 
The two schools serve the communities of Fleur de Lis and Pengam near the town of 
Blackwood. There has been a long standing shared headship arrangement for at least 
fifteen years. The current Headteacher was appointed in 2013 as a ’shared’ 
Headteacher of both schools. 
   
Each school benefits from a full-time deputy head teacher, who have reduced 
classroom commitment to support the head teacher in her absence. The schools have 
appointed administrative clerks to work across the both schools allowing them to benefit 
from the shared expertise of staff. 
 
The two schools have an established history of working very closely together under the 
continued leadership of a ‘shared’ head teacher. Strategic planning is overseen by a 
shared senior management team, comprising of the Head teacher and the Deputy head 
teacher from each school.  This ensures that operational systems are robust and cater 
for the needs of both individual schools.  
 
Staff Inset days are shared which provides both sets of staff with relevant continued 
professional development opportunities and reduces the overall cost to each school. 
Periodic joint staff meetings, monitoring, triad observations and moderation activities 
further support the raising of standards for all pupils across both schools. 
Shared transport arrangements for such things as school trips and swimming, further 
reduce overall costs, which can then be passed on to parents.  
 
Over the past fifteen years there have been numerous examples of ‘best practice’ that 
have been developed and then shared across the two schools, which has enabled both 
schools to deliver improved outcomes for learners. Both schools had successful Estyn 
Inspections in 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 74



7 
 

Federation (Wales) : A Summary 

Policy :  

The Welsh Government’s policy objective is to promote collaboration between all parts 
of the education system to improve outcomes. School federation is a more formal way 
of extending collaboration and promoting closer working relationships.  
 
Legislation : 
 
The Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014. 
 
Summary : 
 
The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two and 
six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing body 
that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in that 
federation.  
 
The most important reason for considering federation must be the benefits such an 

arrangement would bring for children and young people in the federating schools by 

enhancing educational provision.  

A federation can provide a foundation for sustainable long term development and 
improvement.  
 
To be successful, federation needs to be based on a commitment to work as a group of 
schools and a willingness to do things differently for the added benefit of all pupils, their 
well-being and achievements.  
 
One of the advantages of federation is that schools that federate remain in their 
communities and keep their individual identity. However the existing governing bodies 
will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing body which will have 
oversight of, and equal responsibility for, the work of all schools within the federation.  
 
The membership of a governing body for a federation of schools is almost identical to 
the membership of an ordinary governing body with all stakeholders being represented 
although there is more flexibility in the proportions of representation of each category of 
governor. This means that a governing body of a federation can choose a constitution 
and membership which suits their particular circumstances as long as they have a 
minimum of 15 governors and no more than a maximum of 27 governors and adhere to 
the minimum and maximum numbers of governors set out in the regulations.  
 
Schools in a federation will maintain their own delegated budget, name, character, 
school uniform and ethos, and will also be able to explore the advantages of sharing 
resources such as facilities, IT, staff, school buildings etc. 
 
A decision to federate by either schools or LAs will not override the need for a LA to 
intervene or act on school improvement or school organisation issues. 

Page 75



8 
 

 

Key facts : 

 There will be a single governing body with strategic oversight of all schools within 
the federation. 

 

 Each school retains its name, category, budget, staff and remains in its 
community.  

 

 Each school has its own Estyn inspection, though increasingly these are co-
ordinated to happen at the same time for all schools within the federation to 
minimise stress and disruption.  

 

 The governing body of a federation can use resources and staff across the 
federation to improve the educational outcomes for all pupils.  

 

 An audit trail must be kept and separate accounts produced for each school in 
the federation.  

 

 The governing body of a federation cannot require existing staff to work across 
all schools within the federation, but they can negotiate with the school staff 
unions over whether flexible contracts can be introduced.  

 

 New staff can be appointed to work across schools in the federation.  
 

Page 76



9 
 

 

Consultation Process  

It is a statutory requirement to seek the views of stakeholders on federation proposals, 
whether the federation has been proposed by the respective school governing bodies or 
the LA.  
 
This document represents the Council’s responsibility under The Federation of 
maintained Schools (Wales) Regulation 2014 to consult with appropriate stakeholders.  
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views of 
identified stakeholders. 
  
The Local Authority will seek the views of the following stake-holders: 

 Pupils, staff, governors and parents/guardians of both schools 

 Teaching and support staff associations 
 
The consultation document will also be distributed to the following: 
 

 Local ward members for each school. 

 School Councils 

 ESTYN 

 Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 

 Education Achievement Service 
 
A copy of the proposal will also be published on the Council’s website. 
  
A copy of the proposal will also be available for inspection at all reasonable times at 
both schools in the proposed federation.  
 
The comments received from the consultation process will be reported to Cabinet for 
final determination. 
 
The consultation period for this proposal will be 6 weeks from 22nd October 2018 to 10th 
December 2018. 
 
During this period, you may express your views in writing to Fleur de Lis and Pengam , 
Primary Schools  or the local authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



10 
 

 

Timeline 

The timeline for the proposed Federation is shown in the following diagram: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 week 
Consultation 

 

Joint meeting of Governing  
Bodies and local authority 
 to consider responses and  

make final decision 

 

Develop new Instrument of Governance for the single 
Governing Body; election and appointment of governors 

Single Governing Body meets to elect Chair and  
Vice-Chair 

 

January 2019 

July 2019 

    July 2019 

Federation fully established 

22 October – 10 December 2018 

  September 2019 

Scrutiny 

Cabinet 

 

April 2019 

April 2019 

Page 78



11 
 

 
Admission Arrangements 

The admission arrangements for each school will remain unchanged.  The Local 
Authority is the admissions authority for each school.  Parents will apply for a place for  
their child at the school of their choice, not at the Federation, as each school in the 
federation is a separate school.  If the child is not given a place in the school they 
choose, a separate application will have to be made to attend a different school.  This is 
the case even if the second school applied for is the other school in the federation. 
 

Composition of the Governing Body: 

  
Maximum 

LA appointed  4 

   

Headteacher  1 

Teacher  2 

Staff  2 

Parent Governor  4 

Community Governor 
-  appointed by community 
-  appointed by governing body 

  
)            1 
)            4 

   

TOTAL  18 
 

The recommended number is derived from the maximum in each category permitted 
within the regulations in relation to parent and community governors.  To accommodate 
present numbers, it is proposed that any existing governors displaced will be co-opted 
in the first instance.  This number can be reduced to align with the Welsh Government 
Regulations over time. 
 

The governing body may in addition appoint Observer governors. 

Page 79



12 
 

 

The benefits of Federation : 

 Consistency of teaching and learning methodology, especially cross-phase.  

 Reduced transitional dips in pupil performance.  

 Streamlining of policies and structures.  

 Sharing of good practice, preparation materials and resources.  

 Enhanced opportunities for pupil activities. 

 Enhanced opportunities for staff professional development.  

 Increased opportunity for middle management development.  

 Schools have options to choose a senior leadership structure to suit their 

circumstances leading to easier recruitment of staff and Headteachers 

particularly if there have been difficulties.  

 Opportunities for school leadership beyond a single school.  

 Opportunities to maximise resources and professional expertise and achieve 

financial efficiencies from economies of scale.  

 Promotes the broader welfare of students by offering potential for bringing 

together pastoral, health, careers, youth and other services to meet their all-

round needs.  

 Support for schools in difficulty. Schools with strengths can contribute to the 

learning of others.  

 Supports school improvement by enabling schools to draw on the resources of 

other schools to tackle problems, share expertise, raise expectations and 

address the needs of particular groups of pupils.  

 Possible easier recruitment of governors with fewer governor vacancies. 

 Small schools in particular can additionally benefit by: Developing networks for 

personal support. Sharing expertise and resources. Organising professional 

development. Arranging joint pupil activities 

Keys to a successful federation 

 Building of trust between LAs, governors and school communities which is 

fundamental to the success of federations and must be fostered at every level of 

management.  

 Commitment of time and resources from all schools involved.  

 Shared vision and a common purpose of what needs to be done and how for 

improving attainment and achievement at all level. 

 Shared identity between schools e.g. geographical proximity and having 

common aims on curricular and non-curricular activities  

 Clear leadership and management structures.  

 Sufficient time for all parties to be at ease with the proposed changes.  

 All to feel like equal partners.  

 Sense of ownership of process by the schools.  

 Good communication with parents and staff over the changes brought by 

federation. 

Page 80



13 
 

 

 

Challenges of federation 

 Increased workload for governors during inception and first year.  

 Initial concern amongst governors, parents and staff – time needed for federation 

to bed down.  

However, the Governors have been working successfully on a collaborative basis for 

over 15 years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



14 
 

Frequently Asked Questions Around Federation Relating to Welsh Government 

Guidance 

Q1. What is a Federation? 

A federation is a legal governance structure where between two and six schools share 

a single governing body. The schools will retain their individuality, their own name, 

ethos, budget and school uniform but could share resources, facilities and good 

practice. 

Q2. Why should schools federate? 

Working together through a single governing body structure enables schools to raise 

standards and maintain local education provision by sharing resources, staff, expertise, 

and facilities and sharing best practice. A single governing body also provides an 

effective and accountable mechanism for schools to pool resources, including staff and 

budgets, release capacity in the senior management team and gain economies of scale 

and efficiencies. 

Q3. What are the benefits of federation? 

Federation will allow schools to more easily :  

 extend the breadth and quality of provision  

 respond to pupils’ wider needs  

 facilitate the release of our strongest school leaders teachers and governors to 

assist poorer performing schools  

 widen opportunities for staff professional development  

 deliver greater value for money. 

Q4. Why might small schools benefit from federation? 

Federation can help small rural primary schools to remain sustainable within their 

communities. The shared governing body provides an effective and accountable 

mechanism for schools to pool resources and staff, gain economies of scale and 

efficiencies that enable them to remain viable. Smaller schools in more rural and 

isolated areas could also gain as federation could open up opportunities to share 

management, governing body responsibility and curriculum expertise. For small primary 

it would allow them to deliver an enriched primary education by for example, sharing a 

specialist language teacher or drama teacher. 

Q5. What are the benefits and risks of Federation? 

There are a number of benefits for schools from being within a federation including 

broader learning and social experiences for children leading to improvement in pupil 

performance. Schools will be able to share resources, best practice, facilities and 

expertise. There can be further emphasis on strategic leadership and management 

structures, and staff will have new opportunities to work together and reduce isolation. 

Duplication of effort can be avoided and there is an opportunity to promote better 

economies of scale. 

Page 82



15 
 

Some of the risks include the potential organisational difficulties in providing a 

curriculum across a number of schools. Communication with parents and staff at 

different schools may present a challenge. Travel costs may be higher if staff and pupils 

move between schools to meet curriculum needs. There may also be relationship and 

trust issues for governors, Headteachers and staff working across schools. The 

federated governing body should be aware of the potential risks and have strategies 

and actions to mitigate them. 

Q6. Will my school lose its identity within a Federation? 

Schools within a federation will not lose their individual identity though they will share a 

single governing body. The schools retain their separate legal status and have their 

own budget allocations and will be subject to their own Estyn Inspection. The schools 

will also remain in their community and retain their own character, name, ethos and 

school uniform. Whilst each school receives and must account for its own separate 

budget, there is scope, through the single governing body, to use pooled budgets 

across the schools in the federation. Federation works on the basis that all schools 

have their own particular strengths and advantages, whether it is facilities, staff or 

resources. 

Q7. What are the Inspection arrangements for Federated Schools? 

Estyn’s document ‘When will the next school inspection take place?’ sets out guidance 

on inspecting federated schools. The Education (School Inspection) (Wales) 

Regulations 2006 require Estyn to inspect maintained schools every six years and 

produce an individual report for each school. This would also apply to schools in the 

federation. Estyn cannot move a school inspection to later than six years but may carry 

out inspections in a way that the schools in a federation are inspected in the same term, 

especially where the schools have the same Headteacher. Estyn would also consider 

requests from a governing body or LA to inspect schools in the same term. Estyn would 

also try to ensure that the inspection teams for the schools in a federation have 

overlapping membership. 

Q8. What happens to staff within a federation? Will their Conditions of Service change? 

In a federation, all staff would be employed on the same conditions of service as now 

and by the same employer. Whoever is the employer of staff will continue to be the 

employer under the contract of employment. For community, voluntary controlled, 

community special schools and maintained nursery schools, the LA is the employer 

under the contract of employment although the governing body of the federation retains 

responsibility for certain staffing functions i.e. staff grievance, capability, redundancy, 

staff disciplinary and dismissal matters and appointments. The governing body is the 

employer under the contract of employment for staff in voluntary aided and foundation 

schools. 

Page 83



16 
 

 

 

Combined strategic and financial planning should mean that jobs can be better 

protected in any combined period of contraction and that specialist staff can be used to 

best effect, recognising that all support and teaching staff have specialist skills and 

knowledge. Staff would be able to learn from each other within a coherent approach to 

deliver professional learning communities that use data and the National Model to focus 

on school improvements that link to national priorities and their school development 

plans. 

The governing body of a federation would also be able to appoint new staff to work 

within all schools in the federation. This could include the appointment of a single 

Headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in the federation, or the appointment 

of a Bursar or person with financial management skills and/or business management 

skills to oversee the non-teaching aspects of the federation business. 

Q9. Can a federation have a single Headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in 

that federation? 

Yes, if that is what the schools wish to have and this might be a viable option in a 

federation of small rural primary schools. Where this option is chosen for a larger 

federation of up to six schools, i.e. a secondary school and its feeder primary schools 

where each of those schools has a large number of pupils, governing bodies and local 

authorities should consider how this arrangement could be managed and any support 

structure a single Headteacher might require. For example, consideration could be 

given to implementing a management structure that addresses the individual needs of 

each of the schools whilst also supporting curriculum continuity across the federation. 

This could mean having staff in each school whose purpose is to focus on teaching and 

learning supplemented by a structure of posts that work across the federation, all of 

which would be managed by a single Headteacher. 

Another option governing bodies and local authorities may consider is for the federating 

schools to retain Headteachers in each of the schools instead of appointing a single 

Headteacher. 

From a day to day operational perspective schools may wish to adopt a third option 

which would be to appoint a head of the federation and retain a Headteacher in each of 

the schools. If this arrangement was agreed, from a governance perspective only, the 

overarching Headteacher in charge of the federation, if such an appointment is made, 

would be a member of the governing body. If no such appointment is made the 

Headteachers of all the schools may be governors. 

Q10. Would the ‘Headteacher’ with overall responsibility for the federation be 

responsible for managing Headteachers of each school in the federation if that is the 

agreed structure? . 

Page 84



17 
 

 

 

The governing body may choose to appoint a single head of the federation with full 

responsibility for all of the schools in the federation and have only a senior teacher or 

Deputy Headteacher in charge of each school. If the teacher in charge is not a qualified 

Headteacher carrying out the full range of statutory duties of a Headteacher, then the 

head of the federation would be responsible for the performance management of those 

staff. The governing body would be responsible for the performance management of the 

head of the federation. 

Q11. How should heads of federations be paid? 

Following a recommendation from the School Teachers’ Review Body (STRB) the 

Department for Education in England is currently updating the Teachers’ Pay and 

Condition document to reflect interim payments for head teachers who take 

responsibility for more than one school. 

Q12. Are parent governors elected by the parents from their school only or from parents 

across all schools in the federation? 

The proposal for federation should state the number of parent governors from each 

school which in law is that every school must have at least one parent governor elected 

by the parents (or appointed by the governing body if no parent stands for election), at 

that school but no more than two parent governors per school. It is reasonable therefore 

that once a decision has been made as to how many parent governors each school 

would have, the parents of only that school should vote in the parent governor 

elections. If the decision is that a school should have two parent governors each, and 

no parents in a particular school stand for election or only one parent stands for 

election, the federated governing body may appoint parent governors in accordance 

with Schedule 2 of the 2014 Federation Regulations. This means that the governing 

body could appoint a parent of a registered pupil at the school; or the parent of a 

registered pupil from another school in the federation; or the parent of a child of 

compulsory school age (or under compulsory school age for a nursery school). 

Q13. Can a Federation be time-limited? 

A federation should be seen as a long term commitment and not as a quick fix. The LA 

or respective governing bodies will have considered in depth the benefits and risks of 

establishing a federation in relation to the impact on children and young people’s 

achievements. A federation would put in place strategic and operational plans to insure 

the sustainability and development of the schools. That will require medium to long term 

planning. Nonetheless, the 2014 Federation Regulations do allow individual schools to 

leave a federation and for a federation to be dissolved. 

Page 85



18 
 

 

Q14. What are the differences between school federation and school mergers? 

If two schools merge they may remain open in their community but they become one 

multiple site school with a single name, governing body, Headteacher, ethos, budget, 

character and school uniform. In a merger there would only be one Headteacher and it 

is possible there would be redundancies or staff would have to re-apply for posts in the 

new single school. In a multi site schools the LA could also close one of the school sites 

and transfer the pupils to the other sites without the need to go through statutory 

proposals. 

In a federation, the schools remain open in their communities but they also retain their 

own individuality, name, ethos, character budget and school uniform. Staff would also 

keep their jobs and may have wider opportunities for further professional development 

by working across the schools in the federation. Headteachers may also remain in post 

although some federations may only have a single Headteacher. Schools in a 

federation can be closed as part of school organisation proposals but the LA would 

have to apply the statutory proposals process to do this. 

Q15. Can schools establish a joint governing body before formally federating? 

No – the governing body of the federated schools comes into being on the date the 

federation comes into force which must be at least 125 days from the date the 

federation proposals are published (or 100 days if small schools are being federated). 

This means that the governing bodies of the schools that are federating will have to 

have held elections for the core governors i.e. parents, teacher and staff and the LA will 

have to have appointed their LA governors. On the date the federation comes into force 

the newly constituted single governing body can meet and appoint their community 

governors. The schools may however set up a joint working group or committee of 

governors to oversee the federation process if they wish. 

Q16. Can we change the name of the school and or give all the schools in the 

federation the same name? 

One of the key drivers and benefits for federation is that schools do not lose their 

individuality, name and identity and remain as separate establishments. The names of 

all the schools in the federation will appear on the new instrument of government as 

well as the name of the federation. The process for revising the instrument of 

government and changing details such as the names of the schools is set out in the 

Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005. The LA and the 

governing body should reach an agreement on the proposed changes. If they cannot 

the final decision rests with the LA who will want to ensure that any changes are not 

misleading. 

All schools in a federation must retain their individual reference number and budget and 

it could become quite complex and confusing if all the schools decided to change their 

name and adopt a single name when they have to account for separate budgets. 

Page 86



19 
 

 

Response Form 

Proposal to Federate Fleur De Lis and Pengam Primary Schools 

Please note that we will make any comments that you make publicly available as part of the 

subsequent report.  You are not asked to provide your personal details.  All the information you 

provide will be handled in accordance with the Date Protection Act 1998. 

Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other 
 

I support the proposal 
 

I do not support the proposal 
 

Please provide your comments on the proposal to federate  Fleur De Lis and Pengam Primary 

schools: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Print Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
 

Category of respondent (e.g. parent) ________________________________________ 
 
If a parent which school does your child(re) attend:_____________________________ 
 

Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Postcode: _______________________________________ 
 

E-mail: _________________________________________ 
 
Telephone: ______________________________________ 

 
Once completed, please return to:  
Fleur de Lis Primary School, School St, Fleur de Lys, Blackwood NP12 3UX or 
Pengam Primary School, Commercial St, Pengam, Blackwood NP12 3ST or  
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer, Caerphilly County Borough Council, Ty Penallta, 
Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed, CF82 7PG. 
 
The closing date for responses is Monday 10th December 2018. 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 88



1 
 

Appendix D 

Proposal to Establish a School Federation 

Incorporating Bedwas Junior  

and Rhydri Primary schools 
 

Consultation Document 

 

   

 

Governing Body, Bedwas Junior School   

 

Governing Body, Rhydri Primary School 

 

In partnership with 

 

Caerphilly County Borough Council (Education and Lifelong Learning)       

 

 

 

September 2018 

Page 89



2 
 

 

 

FOREWORD 

The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two 
and six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing 
body that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in 
that federation. 
 
The governing bodies of Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary Schools have met 
individually and jointly with the local authority to promote a formal federation 
involving the 2 schools. 
 
Whilst both schools will continue to have their own individual identity with regards to 
name, culture, ethos and continue to manage their own budgets, this process 
involves establishing a single governing body to govern the two schools. 
 
Both schools’ governing bodies have worked collaboratively over the last few  years 
and this is continuing to impact positively upon both schools. 
 
The local Authority is responsible for promoting high educational standards and for 
delivering efficient primary and secondary education.  Having effective leaders in its 
schools is considered central to this and is a challenge facing councils across Wales. 
 
As such this consultation document sets out the case for a change to the leadership 
and governance arrangements at Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary schools.  The 
consultation document has been prepared jointly by the governing bodies and the 
local authority. 
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views 
of identified stakeholders.  Appendices to this document refer to general conditions 
for the Federation of Schools and as such should be read in the appropriate context 
to the federation of Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary Schools. 
 
This consultation document seeks to provide information to allow you to make an 
informed decision as regards the proposal.  Page 18 includes a response pro-forma 
which can be returned to either Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary Schools or the 
local authority.  All feedback whether positive or negative would be appreciated. 
 
Both governing bodies are proposing this formal federation development.  We look 
forward to receiving your views on the proposal. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Keri Cole 
Chief Education Officer 
Caerphilly County Borough Council 

 
Chair of Governors 
Rhydri Primary School 

Samantha Graf 
Chair of Governors 
Bedwas Junior School 

Page 90



3 
 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Section Description Page(s) 

 
1 
 

 
The Proposal 

 
4 

 
2 
 

 
Background 

 
5 

 
3 

 
Federation (Wales) : A Summary 
 

 
6 

 
4 

 
Admission Arrangements & Composition of the 
Governing Body 
 

 
7 

 
5 

 
Key Facts  
 

 
8 

 
6 

 
Consultation Process 
 

 
9 - 10 

 
7 

 
Benefits and Challenges of Federation 
 

 
11 - 12 

 
8 

 
Frequently Asked Questions 
 

 
13 - 17 

 
9 

 
Response Form 
 

 
19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



4 
 

 

The Proposal 

The governing bodies of Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary schools, together with 
Caerphilly County Borough Council (The Local Authority LA) propose to use the 
powers granted to it by the Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 
2014 to establish The Federation of Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary schools.  
 
Both Schools have worked on a collaborative basis since February 2014 
 
The governors of both Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary schools have consulted 
with the Local Authority (Caerphilly County Borough Council) and all parties are in 
support of the proposal.  
 
The aim of the Federation is for the schools to work in partnership to: 
 

 develop the excellent shared practice that guarantees outstanding 
experiences and increased opportunities for pupils and staff 
 

 develop the common goals and reflective approaches to teaching and 
learning that will ensure that both communities benefit from a quality 
education. 

 
This will ensure significant positive outcomes and improved standards for all. 
 
The term ‘Federation’ describes a formal and legal agreement by which the schools 
involved work together in formal partnership under a single governing body. The 
existing governing bodies will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing 
body with strategic oversight of both schools.  
 
The proposed name of the Federation is ‘The Federation of Bedwas Junior and 
Rhydri Primary Schools’.  
 
If the proposal is accepted, the Federation will come into being on 1 September  
2019. 
 

Page 92



5 
 

 

Background 

. 
 
This collaborative approach remains in place and continues to impact positively on 
both schools. 
 
Bedwas Junior School is an English Medium, 7-11, mixed, community school.  

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 173 

Admission Number 43 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – 
excluding Nursery 

163 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year 
average (2014-2017) 

15.4% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 22 

Attendance during the year 95.2% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in 
the core subjects at key stage 2 

95.9% 

Support Category (2017) Green 

 
 

Rhydri Primary School is an English Medium, 3-11, mixed, community school. 

The school characteristics (2017) are as follows: 

Capacity (excluding Nursery) 91 

Admission Number 13 

Pupils on roll (September 2017) – 
excluding Nursery 

93 
 

Free School Meals (FSM) – 3 year 
average (2014-2017) 

2.1% 

Pupil Teacher ratio 17 

Attendance during the year 96.7% 

Pupils achieving the expected level in 
the core subjects at key stage 2 

100% 

Support Category (2017) Yellow 

 
The two schools are located only 2.9 miles apart.  
 
By entering into a federation, the two schools can work together under shared 
leadership to utilise their strengths to improve standards across the federation and 
together address areas in need of improvement. By federating under one governing 
body, the climate of trust, openness and willingness to work together that already 
exists can be further enhanced.  
 

 

 

  

Page 93



6 
 

Federation (Wales): A Summary 

Policy:  

The Welsh Government’s policy objective is to promote collaboration between all 
parts of the education system to improve outcomes. School federation is a more 
formal way of extending collaboration and promoting closer working relationships.  
 
Legislation: 
 
The Federation of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014. 
 
Summary: 
 
The federation of schools is a legal process which enables schools (between two 
and six) to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a governing 
body that will make decisions in the best interest of all the schools, staff and pupils in 
that federation.  
 
The most important reason for considering federation must be the benefits such an 

arrangement would bring for children and young people in the federating schools by 

enhancing educational provision.  

 

A federation can provide a foundation for sustainable long term development and 
improvement.  
 
To be successful, federation needs to be based on a commitment to work as a group 
of schools and a willingness to do things differently for the added benefit of all pupils, 
their well-being and achievements.  
 
One of the advantages of federation is that schools that federate remain in their 
communities and keep their individual identity. However the existing governing 
bodies will be dissolved and replaced by a new, single governing body which will 
have oversight of, and equal responsibility for, the work of all schools within the 
federation.  
 
The membership of a governing body for a federation of schools is almost identical 
to the membership of an ordinary governing body with all stakeholders being 
represented although there is more flexibility in the proportions of representation of 
each category of governor. This means that a governing body of a federation can 
choose a constitution and membership which suits their particular circumstances as 
long as they have a minimum of 15 governors and no more than a maximum of 27 
governors and adhere to the minimum and maximum numbers of governors set out 
in the regulations.  
 
Schools in a federation will maintain their own delegated budget, name, character, 
school uniform and ethos, and will also be able to explore the advantages of sharing 
resources such as facilities, IT, staff, school buildings etc. 
 
A decision to federate by either schools or LAs will not override the need for a LA to 
intervene or act on school improvement or school organisation issues. 
 
 

Page 94



7 
 

Admission Arrangements 

The admission arrangements for each school will remain unchanged.  The Local 
Authority is the admissions authority for each school.  Parents will apply for a place 
for their child at the school of their choice, not at the Federation, as each school in 
the federation is a separate school.  If the child is not given a place in the school they 
choose, a separate application will have to be made to attend a different school.  
This is the case even if the second school applied for is the other school in the 
federation. 
 

Composition of the Governing Body: 

  
Recommended 

LA appointed  4 

   

Headteacher  1 

Teacher  2 

Staff  2 

Parent Governor  4 

Community Governor 
-  appointed by community 
-  appointed by governing body 

 5 
4 
1 

TOTAL  18 
 

The recommended number is derived from the maximum in each category permitted 

within the regulations in relation to parent and community governors.  To 

accommodate present numbers, it is proposed that any existing governors displaced 

will be co-opted for the remainder of their term of office.  Thereafter numbers can be 

reduced to align with the Welsh Government Regulations over time.

Page 95



8 
 

 

Key facts: 

 There will be a single governing body with strategic oversight of all schools 
within the federation. 

 

 Each school retains its name, category, budget, staff and remains in its 
community.  

 

 Each school has its own Estyn inspection, though increasingly these are co-
ordinated to happen at the same time for all schools within the federation to 
minimise stress and disruption.  

 

 The governing body of a federation can use budget, resources and staff 
across the federation to improve the educational outcomes for all pupils.  

 

 An audit trail must be kept and separate accounts produced for each school in 
the federation.  

 

 The governing body of a federation cannot require existing staff to work 
across all schools within the federation, but they can negotiate with the school 
staff unions over whether flexible contracts can be introduced.  

 

 New staff can be appointed to work across schools in the federation.  
 

Page 96



9 
 

 

Consultation Process  

It is a statutory requirement to seek the views of stakeholders on federation 
proposals, whether the federation has been proposed by the respective school 
governing bodies or the LA.  
 
This document represents the responsibility under The Federation of maintained 
Schools (Wales) Regulation 2014 to consult with appropriate stakeholders.  
 
The main purpose of this document is to provide information and to gather the views 
of identified stakeholders. 
  
The Governing Bodies will seek the views of the following stakeholders: 

 Pupils, staff, governors and parents/guardians of both schools 

 Parents/guardians of Bedwas Infants School 

 Teaching and support staff associations 
 
The consultation document will also be distributed to the following: 
 

 Local ward members for each school. 

 School Councils 

 ESTYN 

 Catholic Diocesan Board of Education 

 Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 

 Education Achievement Service 
 
 
A copy of the proposal will also be published on the Council’s website. 
  
A copy of the proposal will also be available for inspection at all reasonable times at 
both schools in the proposed federation.  
 
The comments received from the consultation process will be reported to the 
governing bodies and local authority for final determination. 
 
The consultation period for this proposal will be 6 weeks from 22nd October 2018 to 
10th December 2018.  
 
During this period, you may express your views in writing to Bedwas Junior School,  
Rhydri Primary School or the local authority. 

 

 

Page 97



10 
 

 

Timeline 

The timeline for the proposed Federation is shown in the following diagram: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 week 
Consultation 

 

Joint meeting of Governing  
Bodies and local authority 
 to consider responses and  

make final decision 

 

Develop new Instrument of Governance for the single 
Governing Body; election and appointment of governors 

Single Governing Body meets to elect Chair and  
Vice-Chair 

 

January 2019 

July 2019 

    July 2019 

Federation fully established 

22 October – 10 December 2018 

  September 2019 

Scrutiny 

Cabinet 

 

April 2019 

April 2019 

Page 98



11 
 

 
 
The benefits of federation 

 Consistency of teaching and learning methodology, especially cross-phase.  

 Reduced transitional dips in pupil performance.  

 Streamlining of policies and structures.  

 Sharing of good practice, preparation materials and resources.  

 Enhanced opportunities for pupil activities. 

 Enhanced opportunities for staff professional development.  

 Increased opportunity for middle management development.  

 Schools have options to choose a senior leadership structure to suit their 

circumstances leading to easier recruitment of staff and headteachers 

particularly if there have been difficulties.  

 Opportunities for school leadership beyond a single school.  

 Opportunities to maximise resources and professional expertise and achieve 

financial efficiencies from economies of scale.  

 Promotes the broader welfare of students by offering potential for bringing 

together pastoral, health, careers, youth and other services to meet their all-

round needs.  

 Support for schools in difficulty. Schools with strengths can contribute to the 

learning of others.  

 Supports school improvement by enabling schools to draw on the resources 

of other schools to tackle problems, share expertise, raise expectations and 

address the needs of particular groups of pupils.  

 Possible easier recruitment of governors with fewer governor vacancies. 

 Small schools in particular can additionally benefit by: Developing networks 

for personal support. Sharing expertise and resources. Organising 

professional development. Arranging joint pupil activities 

Keys to a successful federation 

 Building of trust between LAs, governors and school communities which is 

fundamental to the success of federations and must be fostered at every level 

of management.  

 Commitment of time and resources from all schools involved.  

 Shared vision and a common purpose of what needs to be done and how for 

improving attainment and achievement at all level. 

 Shared identity between schools e.g. geographical proximity and having 

common aims on curricular and non-curricular activities  

 Clear leadership and management structures.  

 Sufficient time for all parties to be at ease with the proposed changes.  

 All to feel like equal partners.  

 Sense of ownership of process by the schools.  

 Good communication with parents and staff over the changes brought by 

federation. 

Page 99



12 
 

 

Challenges of federation 

 Increased workload for governors during inception and first year.  

 Initial concern amongst governors, parents and staff – time needed for 

federation to bed down.  

 However, the Governors have been working successfully on collaborative 

basis since February 2014. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



13 
 

Frequently Asked Questions around Federation relating to WG Guidance 

Q1. What is a Federation? 

A federation is a legal governance structure where between two and six schools 

share a single governing body. The schools will retain their individuality, their own 

name, ethos, budget and school uniform but could share resources, facilities and 

good practice. 

Q2. Why should schools federate? 

Working together through a single governing body structure enables schools to raise 

standards and maintain local education provision by sharing resources, staff, 

expertise, and facilities and sharing best practice. A single governing body also 

provides an effective and accountable mechanism for schools to pool resources, 

including staff and budgets, release capacity in the senior management team and 

gain economies of scale and efficiencies. 

Q3. What are the benefits of federation? 

Federation will allow schools to more easily:  

 extend the breadth and quality of provision  

 respond to pupils’ wider needs  

 facilitate the release of our strongest school leaders teachers and governors 

to assist poorer performing schools  

 widen opportunities for staff professional development  

 deliver greater value for money. 

Q4. Why might small schools benefit from federation? 

Federation can help small rural primary schools to remain sustainable within their 

communities. The shared governing body provides an effective and accountable 

mechanism for schools to pool resources and staff, gain economies of scale and 

efficiencies that enable them to remain viable. Smaller schools in more rural and 

isolated areas could also gain as federation could open up opportunities to share 

management, governing body responsibility and curriculum expertise. For small 

primary it would allow them to deliver an enriched primary education by for example, 

sharing a specialist language teacher or drama teacher. 

Q5. What are the benefits and risks of Federation? 

There are a number of benefits for schools from being within a federation including 

broader learning and social experiences for children leading to improvement in pupil 

performance. Schools will be able to share resources, best practice, facilities and 

expertise. There can be further emphasis on strategic leadership and management 

structures, and staff will have new opportunities to work together and reduce 

isolation. Duplication of effort can be avoided and there is an opportunity to promote 

better economies of scale. 

Page 101



14 
 

Some of the risks include the potential organisational difficulties in providing a 

curriculum across a number of schools. Communication with parents and staff at 

different schools may present a challenge. Travel costs may be higher if staff and 

pupils move between schools to meet curriculum needs. There may also be 

relationship and trust issues for governors, headteachers and staff working across 

schools. The federated governing body should be aware of the potential risks and 

have strategies and actions to mitigate them. 

Q6. Will my school lose its identity within a Federation? 

Schools within a federation will not lose their individual identity though they will share 

a single governing body. The schools retain their separate legal status and have 

their own budget allocations and will be subject to their own Estyn Inspection. The 

schools will also remain in their community and retain their own character, name, 

ethos and school uniform. Whilst each school receives and must account for its own 

separate budget, there is scope, through the single governing body, to use pooled 

budgets across the schools in the federation. Federation works on the basis that all 

schools have their own particular strengths and advantages, whether it is facilities, 

staff or resources. 

Q7. What are the Inspection arrangements for Federated Schools? 

Estyn’s document ‘When will the next school inspection take place?’ sets out 

guidance on inspecting federated schools. The Education (School Inspection) 

(Wales) Regulations 2006 require Estyn to inspect maintained schools every six 

years and produce an individual report for each school. This would also apply to 

schools in the federation. Estyn cannot move a school inspection to later than six 

years but may carry out inspections in a way that the schools in a federation are 

inspected in the same term, especially where the schools have the same 

headteacher. Estyn would also consider requests from a governing body or LA to 

inspect schools in the same term. Estyn would also try to ensure that the inspection 

teams for the schools in a federation have overlapping membership. 

Q8. What happens to staff within a federation? Will their Conditions of Service 

change? 

In a federation, all staff would be employed on the same conditions of service as now 

and by the same employer. Whoever is the employer of staff will continue to be the 

employer under the contract of employment. For community, voluntary controlled, 

community special schools and maintained nursery schools, the LA is the employer 

under the contract of employment although the governing body of the federation 

retains responsibility for certain staffing functions i.e. staff grievance, capability, 

redundancy, staff disciplinary and dismissal matters and appointments. The 

governing body is the employer under the contract of employment for staff in 

voluntary aided and foundation schools. 

Page 102



15 
 

 

 

Combined strategic and financial planning should mean that jobs can be better 

protected in any combined period of contraction and that specialist staff can be used 

to best effect, recognising that all support and teaching staff have specialist skills 

and knowledge. Staff would be able to learn from each other within a coherent 

approach to deliver professional learning communities that use data and the National 

Model to focus on school improvements that link to national priorities and their 

school development plans. 

The governing body of a federation would also be able to appoint new staff to work 

within all schools in the federation. This could include the appointment of a single 

headteacher with responsibility for all the schools in the federation, or the 

appointment of a Bursar or person with financial management skills and/or business 

management skills to oversee the non teaching aspects of the federation business. 

Q9. Can a federation have a single headteacher with responsibility for all the schools 

in that federation? 

Yes, if that is what the schools wish to have and this might be a viable option in a 

federation of small rural primary schools. Where this option is chosen for a larger 

federation of up to six schools, i.e. a secondary school and its feeder primary 

schools where each of those schools has a large number of pupils, governing bodies 

and local authorities should consider how this arrangement could be managed and 

any support structure a single headteacher might require. For example, 

consideration could be given to implementing a management structure that 

addresses the individual needs of each of the schools whilst also supporting 

curriculum continuity across the federation. This could mean having staff in each 

school whose purpose is to focus on teaching and learning supplemented by a 

structure of posts that work across the federation, all of which would be managed by 

a single headteacher. 

Another option governing bodies and local authorities may consider is for the 

federating schools to retain headteachers in each of the schools instead of 

appointing a single headteacher. 

From a day to day operational perspective schools may wish to adopt a third option 

which would be to appoint a head of the federation and retain a headteacher in each 

of the schools. If this arrangement was agreed, from a governance perspective only, 

the overarching headteacher in charge of the federation, if such an appointment is 

made, would be a member of the governing body. If no such appointment is made 

the headteachers of all the schools may be governors. 

Q10. Would the ‘headteacher’ with overall responsibility for the federation be 

responsible for managing headteachers of each school in the federation if that is the 

agreed structure? . 

Page 103



16 
 

 

 

The governing body may choose to appoint a single head of the federation with full 

responsibility for all of the schools in the federation and have only a senior teacher or 

deputy headteacher in charge of each school. If the teacher in charge is not a 

qualified headteacher carrying out the full range of statutory duties of a headteacher, 

then the head of the federation would be responsible for the performance 

management of those staff. The governing body would be responsible for the 

performance management of the head of the federation. 

Q11. How should heads of federations be paid? 

Following a recommendation from the School Teachers’ Review Body (STRB) the 

Department for Education in England is currently updating the Teachers’ Pay and 

Condition document to reflect interim payments for head teachers who take 

responsibility for more than one school. 

Q12. Are parent governors elected by the parents from their school only or from 

parents across all schools in the federation? 

The proposal for federation should state the number of parent governors from each 

school which in law is that every school must have at least one parent governor 

elected by the parents (or appointed by the governing body if no parent stands for 

election), at that school but no more than two parent governors per school. It is 

reasonable therefore that once a decision has been made as to how many parent 

governors each school would have, the parents of only that school should vote in the 

parent governor elections. If the decision is that a school should have two parent 

governors each, and no parents in a particular school stand for election or only one 

parent stands for election, the federated governing body may appoint parent 

governors in accordance with Schedule 2 of the 2014 Federation Regulations. This 

means that the governing body could appoint a parent of a registered pupil at the 

school; or the parent of a registered pupil from another school in the federation; or 

the parent of a child of compulsory school age (or under compulsory school age for a 

nursery school). 

Q13. Can a Federation be time-limited? 

A federation should be seen as a long term commitment and not as a quick fix. The 

LA or respective governing bodies will have considered in depth the benefits and 

risks of establishing a federation in relation to the impact on children and young 

people’s achievements. A federation would put in place strategic and operational 

plans to insure the sustainability and development of the schools. That will require 

medium to long term planning. Nonetheless, the 2014 Federation Regulations do 

allow individual schools to leave a federation and for a federation to be dissolved. 

 

Page 104



17 
 

Q14. What are the differences between school federation and school mergers? 

If two schools merge they may remain open in their community but they become one 

multiple site school with a single name, governing body, headteacher, ethos, budget, 

character and school uniform. In a merger there would only be one headteacher and 

it is possible there would be redundancies or staff would have to re-apply for posts in 

the new single school. In a multi site schools the LA could also close one of the 

school sites and transfer the pupils to the other sites without the need to go through 

statutory proposals. 

In a federation, the schools remain open in their communities but they also retain 

their own individuality, name, ethos, character budget and school uniform. Staff 

would also keep their jobs and may have wider opportunities for further professional 

development by working across the schools in the federation. Headteachers may 

also remain in post although some federations may only have a single headteacher. 

Schools in a federation can be closed as part of school organisation proposals but 

the LA would have to apply the statutory proposals process to do this. 

Q16. Can schools establish a joint governing body before formally federating? 

No – the governing body of the federated schools comes into being on the date the 

federation comes into force which must be at least 125 days from the date the 

federation proposals are published (or 100 days if small schools are being 

federated). This means that the governing bodies of the schools that are federating 

will have to have held elections for the core governors i.e. parents, teacher and staff 

and the LA will have to have appointed their LA governors. On the date the 

federation comes into force the newly constituted single governing body can meet 

and appoint their community governors. The schools may however set up a joint 

working group or committee of governors to oversee the federation process if they 

wish. 

Q17. Can we change the name of the school and or give all the schools in the 

federation the same name? 

One of the key drivers and benefits for federation is that schools do not lose their 

individuality, name and identity and remain as separate establishments. The names 

of all the schools in the federation will appear on the new instrument of government 

as well as the name of the federation. The process for revising the instrument of 

government and changing details such as the names of the schools is set out in the 

Government of Maintained Schools (Wales) Regulations 2005. The LA and the 

governing body should reach an agreement on the proposed changes. If they cannot 

the final decision rests with the LA who will want to ensure that any changes are not 

misleading. 

All schools in a federation must retain their individual reference number and budget 

and it could become quite complex and confusing if all the schools decided to 

change their name and adopt a single name when they have to account for separate 

budgets. 

Page 105



18 
 

Response Form 

Proposal to Federate Bedwas Junior and Rhydri Primary Schools 

Please note that we will make any comments that you make publicly available as part of the 

subsequent report.  You are not asked to provide your personal details.  All the information 

you provide will be handled in accordance with the Date Protection Act 1998. 

Please indicate which of the following most accurately reflects your views: 
 

I do not feel strongly one way or the other 
 

I support the proposal 
 

I do not support the proposal 
 

Please provide your comments on the proposal to federate Bedwas Junior and Rhydri 

Primary schools: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Print Name: ____________________________________________________________ 
 

Category of respondent (e.g. parent) ________________________________________ 
 
If a parent which school does your child(ren) attend:____________________________ 
 

Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Postcode: ____________________     E-mail: ______________________________ 
 
Once completed, please return to:  

 Bedwas Junior School, Church Street, Bedwas, Caerphilly CF83 8EB    OR  

 Rhydri Primary School, Rudry, Caerphilly CF83 3DF        OR 

 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer, Caerphilly County Borough Council, Ty Penallta, 
Ystrad Mynach, Hengoed, CF82 7PG. 

 
The closing date for responses is Monday 10th December 2018. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



 

 

 

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
6TH NOVEMBER 2018 

 

SUBJECT: SELF-EVALUATION PROCESS AND ITS IMPACT ON THE EDUCATION 
DIRECTORATE’S SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the process of self-evaluation and its impact on the Education 

Directorate’s Service Improvement Plan, and to provide a summary of key strengths and 
priorities for improvement that are identified as a result of the self-evaluation process. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The self-evaluation process is an integral part of the overall cycle of service improvement.  It 

is fundamental in ensuring the directorate secures ongoing improvements that positively 
contribute to the objectives in our Caerphilly Local Authority Service Improvement Plan and 
corporate plan.  Over the last twelve months, an increasing number of strategies have been 
implemented to ensure that the process is robust, increasing the level of challenge, reflecting 
changes to the Estyn Inspection framework and involving a wider range of stakeholders. 

 
2.2 The self-evaluation process has identified a range of strengths and priorities for improvement 

detailed in the report. 
 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The content of this report contributes to the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 

2015, specifically to maximise the contribution of Education towards national goals.  It also 
links to the Local Authority’s Wellbeing objectives. 

 

 A prosperous Wales – developing a skilled and well educated workforce. 

 A healthier Wales – An education system that promotes health and wellbeing as central to 
its core purpose. 

 A more equal Wales – An education system that meets the needs of all learners including 
those from disadvantaged or vulnerable groups. 

 A Wales of cohesive communities – An education system that builds on strengthening 
communities at a local and national with significant focus on enrichment experiences 
based on the heritage and language of Wales. 

 

Page 107

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9



4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 SELF-EVALUATION POLICY AND PROCESS 
 
4.1.1 A range of data and other information is collected through the self-evaluation process and has 

the following purposes: 
 

 providing an evidence base upon which to arrive at judgements about pupil outcomes and 
progress, quality of provision and the effectiveness of leadership and management of  
Education Services and its future improvement journey; 

 reflecting on what has been done to consistently deepen understanding ; 

 recognising and celebrating good practice and where appropriate use this to support 
others in line with Caerphilly LA’s vision for education; 

 ensuring that stakeholders understand the context of the organisation and the contribution 
that they can make towards further aid improvement; 

 improving the performance, impact and effectiveness of the directorate services and its 
constituent parts, including commissioned services, so that Members and Regulators can 
hold officers, the school improvement service, education and youth settings to greater 
account;  

 evaluating value for money across services; and 

 quality assuring our contribution to overall corporate objectives 
 
4.1.2 An effective self-evaluation policy will lead to the following: 
 

 strategic and operational plans which are monitored against clear targets and success 
criteria;  

 purposeful activities linked to continuing professional development; 

 improved provision for education and youth support services; and  

 accelerated outcomes on the standards and quality of education and wellbeing for all 
learners across the Caerphilly region.  

 
4.1.3 The judgements made during self-evaluation should be:  
 

 secure – based on sufficiently robust, reliable and accessible evidence;  

 first-hand – based on direct observation;  

 reliable – based on common, well-understood criteria;  

 valid – accurately reflecting what is achieved and provided;  

 free of bias – valuing equality of opportunity and diversity; and  

 corporate – reflect the collective vision of Caerphilly LA. 
 
4.1.4 The Caerphilly Education directorate self-evaluation links directly to the Estyn Local 

Government Education Services Inspection Framework (LGES) and our wider local authority 
priorities.  This enables us to have an accurate and up to date picture of our strengths and 
areas for development across all areas of our work. 

 
4.1.5 The three inspection areas of the LGES inspection framework are set out below.  
 

1. Outcomes  

1.1 Standards and progress overall 

1.2 Standards and progress of specific groups 

1.3 Wellbeing and attitudes to learning 

Page 108



 
2.  Quality of Education Services 

2.1 Support for school improvement 

2.2 Support for vulnerable learners 

2.3 Other education support services 

 
3. Leadership and management 

3.1 Quality and effectiveness of leaders and managers 
3.2 Self-evaluation and improvement planning 
3.3 Professional learning  
3.4 Use of resources 

 
4.2. STRATEGIES TO IMPROVE SELF-EVALUATION 
 
4.2.1 Self-evaluation processes have improved significantly over the last twelve months.  Strategies 

include: 
 

a. A series of re-induction training sessions for the Education Management Team.  This has 
helped an increased number of managers and staff improve their understanding of the 
purpose of self-evaluation and to develop consistency in approach; 

b. A move away from narrative heavy ‘FADE’ forms to ‘Monitoring and Evaluation’ reports 
that capture the impact of the services through internal monitoring and external 
verification.  These reports also include a focus on ‘value for money’ and actions for 
improvement; 

c. Introduction of a timetabled monitoring and evaluation cycle to ensure that all aspects of 
the directorate are robustly reviewed.  Individual reports are assigned to key members of 
staff, thereby increasing expectation around engagement with self-evaluation processes; 

d. Moderation of ‘Monitoring and Evaluation’ reports to ensure consistency across the 
directorate; 

e. Dedicating a significant proportion of senior management meetings to self-evaluation; 
f. The expectation for authors of monitoring and evaluation reports to present at senior 

management meetings.  This enables the senior management team to have an improved 
understanding of the key priorities across service areas.  It also allows scope for increased 
challenge to reports to ensure that judgements are fair and actions for improvement are 
purposeful; 

g. Focused self-evaluation days to ensure that staff are provided with the opportunity to work 
in teams.  This also includes Caerphilly LA staff who do not work within the education 
directorate.  Partnership working strengthens the quality of self-evaluation processes; 

h. Regional peer moderation.  Self-evaluation has been a key area for development for the 
SEWC School Improvement group for 2017-18.  The senior management team also 
attended Neath and Port Talbot County Council to consider self-evaluation practices; 

i. Increased collaboration with stakeholders; e.g. school survey, HT feedback sessions, pupil 
feedback; 

j. Strengthened links between the Service Improvement plan, operational plans, corporate 
objectives and EAS Business plan. 

Page 109



 
4.2.2 In October 2018, a questionnaire was distributed to staff who participate in the self-evaluation 

cycle.  Findings overall indicated that staff are engaged with the revised self-evaluation policy 
and understand the impact of self-evaluation on improvement planning. 

 
 Questionnaires sent out: 25   Respondents: 21 
 

 strongly 
disagree 

disagree undecided agree strongly agree 

Processes for self -
evaluation have improved 
over the last twelve months 

  1 4 16 

Self-evaluation engages 
with a wide range of data to 
create accurate judgements 

   6 15 

Self-evaluation informs the 
Service Improvement Plan 
and operational plans 

  1 3 17 

The key questions used for 
monitoring and evaluation 
forms are appropriate (titles 
of each MER) 

  1 8 12 

Monitoring and Evaluation 
forms provide me with a 
clearer understanding of 
what I need to do next. 

 1  5 15 

I have been provided with 
appropriate support and 
guidance to undertake self-
evaluation effectively. 

  1 7 13 

I have a clearer 
understanding of how well 
we perform as a Local 
Authority. 

  3 4 14 

Feedback on self-
evaluation policy and 
processes is taken into 
account. 

  3 4 14 

 
4.2.3 Qualitative statements from the questionnaires: 
 

a. Due to the higher importance and focus on self-evaluation, I believe as a directorate we 
are more connected with where we have been, where we have to go and how we are 
going to get there. 

b. I feel the changes recently made to the self-evaluation process has already significantly 
improved the way we work as a team and ensured a real meaningful alignment between 
our operational plan and the Authorities Well Being Objectives. 

c. The away day for Managers brought teams together allowing integration of the plans 
aiding in the delivery of the high performance which we continually strive for as a 
Directorate. 

d. The ‘Monitoring and Evaluation’ process adopted allows meaningful challenge whilst also 
increasing the knowledge base of the Directorate. 

e. The staff team, as a whole, have embraced the process allowing it to become embedded 
into the day to day work of the Directorate. 

f. For the responses marked agree rather than strongly agree, I think there is room for 
further development/improvement. 

Page 110



g. This process has been very productive in that I now know more about other educational 
areas and not just the Music Service and what we provide.  I hope that other service areas 
know a bit more about the Music Service too through the meetings that we have held so 
far. 

h. The whole process has been explained thoroughly and the ‘Monitoring and Evaluation’ 
forms have been extremely helpful has they do give a clearer understanding of what 
needs doing and by whom. 

i. I think that the whole process has been received well by services and I hope it continues 
in the same format. 

j. The opportunities created for discussion & challenge are very helpful when considering 
our own areas and greatly enhance understanding & knowledge of other service areas & 
issues within the Directorate.  

 
4.2.4 Current actions to improve the self-evaluation process: 
 

a. Further develop the role of stakeholders in the self-evaluation process.  At present, 
stakeholder feedback does not feature in all aspects of the self-evaluation document; 

b. Continue to maintain focus on self-evaluation processes in regional SEWCI meetings in 
2018-19 to build on existing regional best practice; 

c. Complete a summary for schools and Youth settings based on the main findings of the 
self-evaluation report; 

d. Organise a series of meetings for LA staff to share best practice; 
e. Monitor the impact of the revised self-evaluation policy.  Consider frequency of reports to 

ensure the process is manageable.  Consider amendments to key questions in light of 
feedback from stakeholders. 

 
4.3 ROLE OF SCRUTINY IN SELF-EVALUATION 
 
4.3.1 Through the year, members of the Education for Life committee have had opportunity to 

contribute to the self-evaluation process via regular scrutiny meetings.  Members receive a 
range of reports designed to inform and encourage discussion, resulting in the following 
outcomes: 

 

 Acknowledgement of the work of the education directorate; 

 Consideration to the impact and rate of progress which regards to key education priorities; 

 Informed feedback on whether the main priorities are appropriate and how the work of the 
education directorate can be further improved. 

 
4.3.2 The table below identifies the range of scrutiny reports for the academic year 2017-18 and 

identifies their relationship to the different inspection areas. 
 

Indicator Inspection 
Area 

Scrutiny reports 2017-18 

1.1 Standards and 
progress 
overall 

Key Stage 4/Key Stage 5 Performance 2017 (26th February 2018) 
 
Pupil Attainment at Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 3 
(25th September 2018) 
 

1.2 Standards and 
progress of 
specific groups 
 

Regional target setting strategy (7th November 2017) 
 
 

1.3 Wellbeing and 
attitudes to 
learning 

Elective Home Education (EHE) (7th November 2017) 
 
Improving School Attendance (9th January 2018) 
 
Wellbeing Objective 2017-18 (3rd July 2018) 
 
Implementation of the Childcare Offer in Wales (24th April 2018) 

Page 111



 

Indicator Inspection 
Area 

Scrutiny reports 2017-18 

2.1 Support for 
school 
improvement 

Education Achievement Services (EAS) Business Plan 2018-2021 – 
28th March 2018. (26th February 2018) 
 
EAS Schools Causing Concern Protocol and Risk Register (22nd May 
2018) 

2.2 Support for 
vulnerable 
learners 

 
Caerphilly behaviour model and provision (9th January 2018) 
 
Support for mental health for Children and Young People (24th April 
2018) 

2.3 Other 
education 
support 
services 

 

3.1 Quality and 
effectiveness 
of leaders and 
managers 

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2017 - 2020. (9th January 2018) 
 
Summary of Estyn Inspection under the new Common Inspection 
Framework September 2017 – May 2018 (3rd July 2018) 

3.2 Self-evaluation 
and 
improvement 
planning 

Revised guidance for the inspection of local government educations 
services (9th January 2018) 
 
The Directorate of Education and Life Long Priorities for 2018-2023. 
(22nd May 2018)  
 
Junior and Youth Forum Priorities (9th January 2018) 

3.3 Professional 
learning 

 

3.4 Resources Medium term financial plan – saving proposals for 2018/19 (7th 
December 2017) 
 
Draft Budget Proposals for 2018/19 (7th December 2017) 
 
Education Capital 2018/19 (26th February 2018) 
 
Education Achievement Service (EAS) Value for Money (22nd May 
2018) 
 
21st Century Schools and Education Band B Proposals. (19th April 
2018) 
 
Budget Monitoring 2018/19 (25th September 2018) 

 
4.3.3 Additional scrutiny committees may also contribute to the education self-evaluation process.  

For example, on 20th March 2018, the Health, Social care and Wellbeing Committee 
considered ‘How do schools engage with healthy living?’ 

 
4.4 MAIN THEMES FROM THE SELF-EVALUATION PROCESS 
 
4.4.1 Good features across the education directorate include: 
 

a. Performance at foundation phase is good.  Performance of the Foundation Phase Indicator in 
2018 compares favourably against the regional SEWC and Welsh averages.  Trends over 
time are favourable compared to the SEWC region and Welsh average.  Of note, performance 
in Mathematical Development at Outcome 5+ and 6+ compare favourably against the regional 
SEWC and Welsh averages.  This is also reflected in the performance in trends over a three 
year period. 

Page 112



 
b. Overall, performance at the end of Key Stage 2 is good.  Performance at the expected +1 in 

English, Welsh 1st Language and mathematics remains above the national average. 
 
c. Performance at Key Stage 3 continues to improve.  A range of indicators measuring 

performance at the end of Key Stage 3 over the previous 3 years has increased and 
compares favourably against the Welsh average.  Trends over time are favourable compared 
to both the SEWC region and Welsh average. 

 
d. Standards of achievement (additional awards, national and local accreditations) through the 

Youth Service (16-25) is good.  This is evidenced through the development of skills in 5 key 
areas essential for personal, social and educational development. 

 
e. Despite an increase in 2017/18, trends over time indicate that strategies to reduce the number 

of young people not in education, employment or training (NEETs) are effective. 
 
f. The number of schools categorised as red and amber in primary, infant and junior schools has 

decreased over time.  An increasing number of schools are being categorised as ‘green’, 
therefore requiring less support. 

 
g. The LA currently has a relatively low number of schools in a statutory category.  At present, 

there is one primary school and one secondary school in a statutory category.  Where schools 
have been placed in an Estyn follow-up category, nearly all primary, infant and junior schools 
make good progress within the agreed timeframe and are removed. 

 
h. School engagement with the Healthy Schools scheme has ensured that Caerphilly has 

achieved the target of 95% of schools to have reached Phase 3 or above.  Caerphilly has 
achieved above the 10% target figure of schools to achieve NQA status.  At present, only 
eight other authorities across Wales have achieved this level of success.  Caerphilly is only 
one of three LAs to have a Special School achieve the Healthy Schools National Quality 
Award. 

 
i. Flying Start Programmes provide effective intensive bespoke interventions in conjunction with 

health visitors and family support workers.   
 

j. The implementation of the WG Childcare Offer has been effective.  Caerphilly LA was an early 
implementer and was able to roll out the offer to the full Caerphilly borough within seven 
months. Feedback from Welsh Government has been very positive. 

 
k. The Youth service participation structures and provision have been recognised by Welsh 

Government and the Children’s Commissioner for Wales as one of the most effective 
nationally.  Excellent practice within the Youth service has been recognised annually through 
the Youth Work Excellence Awards. 
 

l. Caerphilly has been proactive in stimulating demand for Welsh medium education across the 
borough including development of substantial Welsh medium childcare provision, primary 
schools and secondary school across 2 sites.  The commitment to continue to provide an 
increased number of places is demonstrated through plans in the 21st century school Band B 
capital programme, and the successful securing of funding for all Welsh medium capital 
programme bids. 

 
m. Students entered for Associated Board and Trinity Guildhall examinations via Caerphilly Music 

Service have resulted in a 100% pass rate.  A record number of more able and talented pupils 
are supported via the regional Four Counties Orchestra and Wind band.  Caerphilly Music 
Service is the only remaining Local Authority in Wales that provides a subsidy for schools to 
support students from an economic disadvantaged background. 

 

Page 113



n. The Junior Forum, one of a few in Wales, is recognised by WG as an effective and accessible 
mechanism for participation.  Nearly all students demonstrate an increased understanding of 
children’s rights as well as demonstrating a progression in soft skills attainment.  All young 
people actively involved in the Youth Forum feel that they influence decision making through 
the youth forum, and demonstrate progression in personal and social skills. 

 

o. The Cabinet Member for Education plays a pivotal role in the strategic planning of education 
across Caerphilly.  The scrutiny committee play an important role in self-evaluation processes 
and holding the education directorate to account. 
 

p. There is a breadth of skills and knowledge alongside a range of experiences across the 
leadership team; 

 

q. Processes around self-evaluation and service improvement planning continue to improve. 
 

r. There are effective and strategic monitoring and evaluation processes in place around the 
planning and delivery of the 21st Century Schools programme. 

 

s. Analysis of the most recent Children’s Public Library User Surveys highlights the encouraging 
levels of customer satisfaction that persist among users under 16 years of age.  The Library 
Service achieved 18 out of 18 core entitlements against the Welsh Public Library Standards in 
2017/18. 
 

t. CCBC’s adult education service is an active member of the Gwent Five County Partnership 
for Adult Community Learning.  Our ACL department has achieved the highest successful 
completion & attainment rates [learners who start and complete courses] for the last five 
years.  

 

u. In 2017-18 the Directorate remained within its budget allocation for the year and contributed to 

an increase in Authority balances at year end.  To date the Directorate has successfully 

achieved its MTFP annual savings target.  

 

v. Financial planning has enabled Managers to target investment for specific interventions within 

Schools and other areas of the Directorate (e.g. £173k identified for Behaviour & Mental 

Health issues; match funding for European Projects – Bridges into Work 2 and Working Skills 

for Adults 2 which have recently been extended by WEFO; targeted spend for School 

Improvement – directed by Chief Education Officer). 

 

w. The finance team have successfully worked with Managers and Schools to secure “new” 

funding through a bid process with Welsh Government [e.g. School Business Managers Pilot; 

Community Focus School Business Managers Pilot; Reducing Infant Class Size Grant; School 

Based Supply Cluster Pilot].  

 

4.4.2 Main priorities for improvement: 
 

 Improve outcomes at end of Key Stage 4 and 5.  Identify any dips in performance at 
Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 and consider strategies for 
improvement. 

 

 Await confirmation of outcomes measures for Key Stage 4 and 5 by Welsh Government.  
Consider alternative strategies to effectively scrutinise performance data in light of 
changes to performance reporting measures.  Data to be based on: 

 

- National categorisation; 

- Progress of schools causing concern; 

- Estyn inspection outcomes and progress of schools; 

- School engagement in the curriculum reform progress; 

- Implement guidance from WG regarding a national ‘score card’. 

Page 114



 

 Improve the performance of boys and pupils identified as e-FSM across all phases of 
education.  Work alongside school improvement partners to implement a series of 
measures to increase accountability for all stakeholders. 

 

 Refine current procedures to monitor and track ‘risk’ pupils to ensure that all categories of 
vulnerability are taken into account.  Work alongside school improvement partners to 
monitor, challenge and support schools in order to raise attainment for these students. 

 

 Ensure target setting is focused on aspiration for all learners rather than high stakes 
accountability.   

 

 Build on the recent increase in attendance data to achieve improvements over time.  
Continue to build capacity in schools in order to effectively raise levels of attendance. 

 

 Reduce the number of exclusions across secondary schools in line with regional and 
national data.  Support schools in sharing best practice across the SEWC region. 

 

 Continue to develop methods for evaluating the impact education services have on 
wellbeing and attitudes to learning.  Modify existing strategies based on findings. 
 

 Work alongside regional and national partners to further improve the quality of education 
for pupils identified as EOTAS (Education other than at school). 

 

 Improve identification and outcomes for less able students through the successful 
implementation of the Additional Learning Needs Reform Act. 

 

 Reduce the number of secondary schools requiring the highest levels of support (amber 
and red). 

 

 Reduce the number of secondary schools identified as ‘Estyn Review’ following statutory 
inspection.   

 

 Work alongside the school improvement service to effectively implement the ‘Successful 
Futures’ curriculum. 

 

 Continue to sharpen and improve self-evaluation processes through an ethos of ‘collective 
accountability’.  Engage with the national self-evaluation toolkit currently being developed 
by Estyn, OECD and practitioners.  Use the toolkit to inform the Local Authority self-
evaluation process.  

 

 Verify the very good practice across the Youth Service through participation in the Quality 
Mark initiative.  Continue to evaluate the effectiveness of the Youth Service and make 
adjustments to provision where appropriate. 

 

 Monitor and evaluate the impact of the 21st Century Schools programme and ensuring 
lessons learnt from Band A are embedded into the Band B delivery. 

 

 Continue to embed the newly revised leadership structure to maximise attainment and 
achievement across all aspects of the directorate. 

 

 Continue to promote regional partnerships to ensure consistency and promote best 
practice. 
 

 Improve financial analysis to enhance how the Directorate considers value for money, thus 
ensuring that managers are more fully informed when considering the allocation of 
reducing resources. 

 

Page 115



4.4.3 LINK TO SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLANNING 
 
 The above priorities for improvement link with the main objectives identified in the Service 

Improvement plan.   
 

1. Standards ‐ Improve outcomes for all learners particularly those within Key Stage 3 and 

4; 

2. Attendance ‐ Increase the percentage of pupil attendance across primary and secondary 

schools in order to maximise pupils’ learning; 

3. Early Years/Youth/Adult Learning ‐ Reduce the impact of poverty upon communities; 

4. 21st Century Schools ‐ Transform educational opportunities for learners by delivery of fit 

for purpose; 

5. Inclusion ‐ Improve provision and outcomes for vulnerable groups; 

6. Inclusion ‐ Reduce the rates of exclusions, therefore impacting upon pupil attainment and 

outcomes; 

7. Inclusion ‐ Secure excellence in learner well‐being; 

8. Inclusion ‐ Ensure that the LA is fully compliant with the ALN Act. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 The self-evaluation process contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy 

above.  It is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable 
development principle in the Act: 

 

 Long Term:  The importance of balancing short-term issues of attainment alongside 
longer-term needs around the impact of attainment on economic wellbeing and health and 
wellbeing. 

 Prevention: A long term strategic plan makes a contribution to public bodies meeting their 
wider objectives. 

 Integration: A purposeful, strategic self-evaluation process fully integrates into the Local 
Authority wellbeing objectives and other corporate objectives. 

 Collaboration: Improvement in standards of attainment and achievement is reliant upon 
effective partnership with a range of stakeholders including schools, EOTAS settings, 
inclusion and medical specialists and safeguarding teams.   

 Involvement: An effective self-evaluation relies on the involvement of pupils and other 
young people in achieving the identified objectives.  

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There is no specific equalities impact in relation to the content of this report.  The Local 

Authority self-evaluation process considers all equalities issues through the identification of 
vulnerable groups related to their achievement and attainment.  This identification of groups 
contributes to priorities identified in the Service Improvement Plan.   

 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications. 
 
 

Page 116



9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 All responses are reflected in the report. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Members note the content of the report. 
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 Self-evaluation provides key evidence for improvement across the Education Directorate. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Education Act 1996. 
 
 
Author:  Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement 
  Warrep1@caerphilly.gov.uk  
Consultees:   Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services 
  Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive 

Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member, Education and Achievement 

                         Councillor Derek Havard, Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 
                         Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education for Life Scrutiny Committee 
                         Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
                         Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities and Welsh Language) 
                         Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy 
                         Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion and ALN 
  Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager 

Paul O’Neill, Senior Youth Service Manager 
Linda Perkins, Senior Educational Welfare Officer 
Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager (Education, Lifelong Learning & Schools) 

                         Ros Roberts, Performance Manager 
Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 

  Julie Wood, Principal Challenge Advisor (Education Achievement Service) 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 - Cycle of Submitting Reports to SMT 
 

Page 117

mailto:Warrep1@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 118



Appendix 1 

Cycle of Submitting Reports to SMT 
 

Month Title Type of evidence Responsibility 

April What is the level of participation by young 
people with the Youth Service across 
Caerphilly? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 
 

April Evaluate the scope and effectiveness of 
the current Public Library Service offer in 
relation to supporting the development of 
literacy, numeracy and digital skills. 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Libraries 

April How effective are strategies to reduce the 
number of NEETs?  Do the percentage of 
NEETs in Caerphilly compare favourably 
with the SEWC region and the rest of 
Wales? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 

April What is the impact of FPNs on rates of 
attendance 

Case study Educational Welfare 
Service (LP) 

April What is the impact of the LAs use of 
statutory powers? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(KC) 

April What is the quality of provision for EOTAS 
settings (LA provision) 

Case study EOTAS (SE) 

May How does the library service support the 
LAs commitment to improving quality of 
experience of pupils identified as 
vulnerable? 
 

Case study Libraries 

May How effective is the school improvement 
service? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(PW) 

May How effectively does the LA promote 
Welsh medium education? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Early Years/Non 
maintained settings 
 

May What is the impact of the Youth forum and 
Junior forum? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 
(CE) 
 
 

May How effective are stakeholder 
consultations? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 
 
Additional 
contributions – all 
services 
 

May How effective is the LAs strategy to tackle 
issues related to substance misuse? 

Case study Healthy Schools (AT) 
 
Additional 
contribution - 
Inclusion 

May How effectively does the LA monitor child 
licenses 

Case study Educational Welfare 
Service (LP) 

June What is the quality of provision for EOTAS 
settings (external provision) 

Case study EOTAS (SE) 

June How effective is partnerships with 
additional KS5 provisions? 

Case study School Improvement 
(PW) 

Page 119



Month Title Type of evidence Responsibility 

June How well does the LA safeguarding team 
work with regional partners? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Safeguarding (HW) 
 
Additional 
contribution - 
Inclusion 

June What is the impact of family support on 
parental learning outcomes? 

Case Study Early Years/Non 
maintained settings 
 

June What evidence is there to suggest that the 
music service contributes to the attainment 
and achievement of all pupils? 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Music Service (HP) 

July How does the music service support the 
LAs commitment to improving quality of 
experience of pupils identified as 
vulnerable? 

Case study Music (HP) 

July Utilise direct public feedback Customer 
Satisfaction (CIPFA Plus Survey) Findings 
to review the impact of local library 
services on the community. 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Libraries 

July What is the impact of the Lansbury Park 
project 

Case study Early Years/Non 
maintained settings 
 
Additional 
contribution – School 
Improvement 
 

July  How well does the LA promote Health and 
Fitness? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Healthy Schools (CQ) 

July What is the impact of Healthy and 
Sustainable Preschool Scheme? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Early Years/Non 
maintained settings 
 

September How do young people contribute to 
strategic improvement? 

Case study Youth/Community/ 
Healthy Schools 
 
Additional 
contribution – all 
services 
 

September How effectively does the LA monitor and 
support elective home education? 
 

Case study Educational Welfare 
Service (LP) 

September What is the impact of Flying Start 
programme against children 
developmental norm outcomes? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Early Years/Non 
maintained settings 
 

September How effectively does the LA manage 
provision for pupils in EOTAS settings? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

EOTAS (SE) 

September What is the impact of regional 
partnerships? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement/ 
Inclusion (PW) 

September How effective are procedures for school 
admissions? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Admissions (AW) 

September Review the library performance against the 
Welsh Government Standards Core and 
Quality Indicators. 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Libraries 

Page 120



Month Title Type of evidence Responsibility 

September What are standards of achievement 
(additional awards, national and local 
accreditations) for young people through 
the Youth Service? 

 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 
 

October How effective is the work of SACRE? Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(PW) 
 

October What is the effectiveness of elected 
members and other supervisory boards? 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(KC) 
 

October How effective is the ongoing management 
of existing buildings? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

21st Century Schools 
(SR) 

October How effective are safeguarding policies, 
procedures, training, recruitment 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Safeguarding (HW) 
 
Additional 
contribution - 
Inclusion 

October  Does Estyn Inspections suggest that 
performance in schools is improving over 
time? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(PW) 

October Does categorisation suggest that 
performance in schools is improving over 
time? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(PW) 

October What is the attainment and achievement of 
vulnerable groups at FP? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Inclusion (SE) 

November How is professional learning linked to 
strategic improvement? 

Case study School Improvement 
(PW) 

November How effective is the LA in managing 
statutory responsibilities linked to ALN? 

Case Study Inclusion (SE) 

November How effective are strategies to prevent 
extremism and radicalisation?  
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Safeguarding (HW) 

November Does the use of WG grants impact on pupil 
attainment? 

Case study Finance (JS) 

November What is the attainment and achievement of 
vulnerable groups at KS2? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Inclusion (SE) 

November How effective is the Healthy Schools 
scheme? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Healthy Schools (CQ) 

November How good are accredited outcomes for 
volunteers/workers in the play sector? 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 
 

November What is the impact of the Legacy 
Programme? 

Case study Youth/Community 
 

November Evaluate the success of the annual 
Summer Reading Scheme delivered to 
support literacy levels across the UK. 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Libraries 

November How well do we provide an appropriate 
range and number of school places?  

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

21st Century Schools 
(AW) 

December How effective is 21st Century Schools 
Programme? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

21st Century Schools 
(SR) 

December How effective is LA provision for Eco-
Schools? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Healthy Schools 
(CQ)/Policy 

December How effective is strategic leadership and 
overall vision? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School 
Improvement/21st 
Century Schools 
(KC/SR) 

Page 121



Month Title Type of evidence Responsibility 

December How effective is the LA in supporting pupils 
with SPLD difficulties? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Inclusion (BC) 

December What is the attainment and achievement of 
vulnerable groups at KS3? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Inclusion (SE) 

January Are examination results indicating that 
standards in schools is improving over 
time? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(PW) 

January What is the attainment and achievement of 
vulnerable groups at KS4? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Inclusion (SE) 

January  Are pupil attendance rates improving? 
 
 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Educational Welfare 
Service (PW) 

February What is the attainment and achievement of 
vulnerable groups at KS5? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Inclusion (SE) 

February Does target setting and progress against 
targets identify robust processes to raise 
standards?  

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 

February Evaluate the scope and effectiveness of 
the current Public Library Service offer to 
secondary schools and pupils at Key Stage 
3 and 4 within the County Borough 
Council. 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Libraries 

February  Does Estyn Inspections suggest that 
performance in schools is improving over 
time? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School Improvement 
(PW) 

February 21st Century project - review Case study 21st Century Schools 
(SR) 

March How effectively does the Youth Service 
work with education partners? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Youth/Community 
 

March Does the use of WG grants impact on pupil 
attainment? 

Case study Finance (JS) 
 
Additional 
contribution – School 
Improvement 

March How well does the LA manage complaints 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Complaints (AW) 

March How effective are we in the management 
of information governance? 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

Admin Team (ES) 

March How effective are self-evaluation 
processes? 
 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Report 

School 
Improvement/Admin 
and Policy (PW/ES) 

 
 
 
 

Page 122



 

 

 

EDUCATION FOR LIFE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
 6TH NOVEMBER 2018 

 

SUBJECT: EDUCATION OTHER THAN AT SCHOOL (EOTAS)  
 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To update the Committee on the intended course of action to address the current service and 

financial challenges associated with the provision of Education Other Than At School 
(EOTAS) across Caerphilly. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 At the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee of the 25th September 2018, the Committee 

received a report setting out the projected 2018-19 outturn position for the Education and 
Lifelong Learning function based on the most recent information available.  

 
2.2 The predicted position across the Education and Lifelong learning function was a forecast 

overspend of £438k at year end.  This overall net position, however, was impacted 
significantly by the forecast £830k overspend in relation to EOTAS, additional support and the 
provision of out of county Education. 

 
2.3 The costs of EOTAS provision has been increasing over several financial years and, as a 

result, this has been added as a growth item in the draft budget proposals for 2019/20 which 
will be considered by Cabinet on the 14th November 2018.  

 
2.4 That aside, the Education Service recognises the need to explore options to deal with future 

demand, improve the services being currently provided to our vulnerable learners and 
managing costs more effectively.  

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 Corporate Plan 2018-23 – Wellbeing Objective 1 - Improve Education Opportunities for All 
 
 Outcome 2 –  Raise standards of attainment.   
 Outcome 4 –  Help those who are not able to follow a traditional attainment path 
 Outcome 8 –  Safeguard all children and young people in order to create a climate for  

  learning, particularly for those most vulnerable. 
 
3.2 Exclusion form Schools and Pupil Referral Units Guidance 2015. 
 
3.3 SEN and Inclusion Strategy. 
 
3.4 SEN Code of Practice for Wales (2002). 
 

Page 123

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 10



3.5 Education in Wales: Our National Mission. 
 
3.6 Eotas: Framework for Action (2017). 
 
3.7 Equality and Equity in Education (2017). 
 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The Education Other Than At School (EOTAS) provision accommodates learners who are 

unable to attend and learn in a mainstream school setting for varying reasons.  The numbers 
of pupils requiring such support of this nature is increasing, as are the associated costs.  

 
4.2 The numbers of children accessing the Authority’s home tuition service has shown an 

increased trend over the last three years (numbers total between 130 -170 at any one time), 
linked in part to the rise in mental health needs.  These numbers relate particularly to Yr 8 
pupils and above.  The demand for those accessing procured EOTAS provisions has 
remained consistent at between 85 – 110 learners at any one time, however this is against a 
background of increasing charges per learner. 

 
4.3 Currently, internal support for our most vulnerable learners is linked to Schools in particular 

the Special Resource Base (SRB); the Authority’s Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) at Glan Y Nant, 
together with increasing support from the Youth Service.  

 
4.4 Alongside this internal delivery are a range of procured providers, complimented by a number 

of Agency based staff.  The costs associated with these external elements of provision are 
becoming increasingly more expensive and are, by their nature, difficult to control.  

 
4.5 The Local Authority has been considering the impact and costs of existing provision and has 

begun to engage key stakeholders on the benefits of a potential new model.  The new model 
would need to be capable of meeting the changing needs of our vulnerable learners, provide a 
high quality support and learning environment and reduce the Council’s exposure to cost 
increases moving forwards.  The following questions have informed this early engagement: 

 

 what is currently in place to support children in schools and alternative provision? 

 what is working successfully and what could be improved? 

 what could we do to respond to any potential gaps in provision? 

 how can the needs of all learners be met ensuring that they have an equality of 
opportunity to achieve their potential? 

 
4.6 The engagement to date, which has included education staff, primary, secondary and special 

school head teachers, pastoral leaders (secondary) and staff from the Pupil Referral Unit 
(PRU) has identified the following needs that any new model should aim to address:   

 

 building capacity in schools to meet the needs of the majority of learners  

 addressing identified gaps  

 meeting the specific needs of learners (emotional wellbeing, mental health, behaviour and 
learning) where needs cannot be met in mainstream settings 

 providing a sustainable & flexible model of delivery 

 providing targeted, bespoke, high quality teaching and learning 

 contributing to improved outcomes for learners  

 demonstrating value for money 
 
4.7 With a forecast overspend in EOTAS provision at the end of the current financial year, a 

desire to improve the provision for our most vulnerable learners and the beginnings of a new 
model starting to take shape, the Council would like to appoint a Head of Provision for 
Vulnerable Learners to transform existing provision.  The appointment would provide much 
needed additional and dedicated capacity that would help accelerate the development and 
implementation of a new model that the Head of Provision for Vulnerable Learners would 

Page 124



ultimately oversee the provision. 
 
4.8 The primary focus of the role would be: 
 

 to support the establishment of a model of provision for Caerphilly that would meet the 
needs set out in 4.5 

 to support the development of a fully costed business case and options appraisal for 
consideration 

 to put in place the necessary partnerships and relationships to support the new provision 

 to create and lead a provision that can be considered a centre of excellence for vulnerable 
learners. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 This report contributes to the Well-being Goals as set out in Links to Strategy above.  It is 

consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 
principle in the Act and more specifically for the principles noted below.  

 

 Long term – The report considers the importance of balancing the short term needs to 
safeguard the ability to also meet long term needs.  Continuing to support and work with 
schools to promote a common moral purpose in managing a spectrum of learners’ 
behavioural needs.  Promoting early intervention and the use of appropriate strategies to 
support learner needs within their mainstream settings is crucial to the effective 
implementation of a sustainable behaviour model. 

 Prevention – Implementing effective early intervention strategies and support working 
collaboratively with schools, and all other service providers will reduce the need for more 
intensive interventions later in learners educational pathways.  This will be balanced 
against having effective identification systems and referral routes identified to support 
learners during their educational journey. 

 Integration – The behaviour and wellbeing of all Caerphilly leaners leads to a more 
prosperous and healthy adult population. 

 Collaboration - Working collaboratively with other service providers such as health, social 
care and youth services provides a more cohesive approach to managing the behavioural 
needs identified within the education system. 

 Involvement – All stakeholders need to be full participants in this behavioural model 
development to support and challenge and enhance the development itself.  This will be at 
a local, regional and national level.  This approach will lead to increased outcomes for all 
learners as they progress into adult hood and become meaningful contributors to living 
and working Caerphilly. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 Council’s full Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) process is adhered to at all times. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 It is anticipated that the Head of Provision for Vulnerable Learners will be recruited at the 

Teaching Leadership Range L15 to L19 (£73,364 to £80,941 inclusive of on costs).  
 
7.2 The draft budget proposals for 2019/20 recognise the financial pressures facing this statutory 

area of the service and include a proposed allocation of growth to support delivery.  It is 
anticipated that the costs associated with the new post will form part of the growth allocation. 

 
7.3 Subject to Council approval of the 2019/20 budget, the service would look to progress with the 

recruitment of this post. 
 

Page 125



 

Page 126



8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The appointment of the Head of Provision for Vulnerable Learners is a new post and it is 

intended that it will be advertised internally and externally at the same time. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 The report reflects the views of consultees.  
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Members are asked to consider the content of the report and provide comments. 
 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 The recommendations reflect the need to develop a sustainable, fit for purpose model of 

provision for the most vulnerable learners. 
 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

Education Act 1996. 
Equality Act 2010. 
United Nations Convention On The Rights Of The Child. 

 Inclusion and Pupil Support Guidance Welsh Government 2016. 
 
 
Author:  Sarah Ellis (Lead for Inclusion and ALN) 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Interim Chief Executive 

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director Education and Corporate Services 
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
Nicole Scammell, Head of Corporate Finance and Section 151 Officer 
Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement 
Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
Education Scrutiny Committee 
Lisa Downey, Personnel Manager 
Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager 
Sue Richards, Head of Education, Planning and Strategy 
Councillor Philippa Marsden, Cabinet Member Education and Achievement 

 

Page 127



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 128


	Agenda
	3 Addysg am Oes a gynhaliwyd ar 25ain Medi 2018.
	6 Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg Gydol Oes.
	2018-19 Education for Life FWP - Appendix 1
	Cabinet FWP Presented to Cabinet and Scrutiny - Appendix 2

	8 Ymgynghoriad - Cynnig i Ffedereiddio.
	Consultation - Proposal to Federate Appendix A
	Consultation - Proposal to Federate Appendix B
	Consultation - Proposal to Federate Appendix C
	Consultation - Proposal to Federate Appendix D

	9 Y Broses Hunanarfarnu a'i Heffaith ar Gynllun Gwella Gwasanaethau'r Gyfadran Addysg.
	Self-Evaluation Process and its Impact on the Education Directorate's Service Improvement Plan App 1

	10 Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol

